DIRECTOR
Jenny Marr

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Judeen Bartos
Meghan Evoy

Strengthening the community by
providing access to materials
and services that inform, enrich,
entertain and empower.

Kelly Farrah

Adrienne Fazzolara

Amanda Hanlin N 5

Erin Hooper 222 East Nine Mile Rd., Ferndale, MI 48220
Kevin Yezbick 248-546-2504 fadl.org

Library Board Meeting
AGENDA
December 14, 2023 - 6:30 PM
Board Meeting

. Call to order
. Roll call
. Approval of agenda
. Minutes: Approve November 16, 2023 regular meeting
Minutes: Approve November 16, 2023 closed session
5. Director’s Presentation: Collective Bargaining Agreement
6. Approval of Collective Bargaining Agreement
7. Public comment — Total time not to exceed 30 minutes, 3 minutes per speaker
8
9

A WN =

. Director’s report: Jenny Marr
. Acceptance of expenditures and finance reports for the month of October
Acceptance of expenditures and finance reports for the month of November
10. Board Calendar of Events
11. Committee reports
A. Art & Exhibitions — Erin
B. Friends of the FPL - Kelly
C. Equity, Diversity and Inclusion - Amanda
D. Finance — Judeen and Kevin
E. Personnel — Adrienne
F. Schools — Meghan
12. Committee membership appointments as needed
13. Review action items
14. Announcements/comments from board members
15. ***Closed Session to be convened — To consider material exempt from discussion or disclosure by
state or federal statute, in accordance with Sec. 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act (OMA) MCL 15.268.
16. Adjourn

Proposed minutes of this meeting will be available for public inspection at the Ferndale Area District Library, located at 222 East
Nine Mile Road, Ferndale, eight (8) business days after the meeting. Approved minutes are available within five (5) business days
after the meeting at which they are approved (in accordance with Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267.)



DIRECTOR

= Ferndale =&s

Judeen Bartos

Meghan Evey AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY .

Kelly Farrah
Adrienne Fazzolara

Strengthening the community by
providing access to materials
and services that inform, enrich,
entertain and empower.

e e 222 East Nine Mile Rd., Ferndale, MI 48220
Kevin Yezbick 248-546-2504 fadl.org

Library Board Meeting

Proposed Minutes
November 16, 2023 - 6:30 PM
Board Meeting

1. Call to order: Meeting called to order by Judeen Bartos at 6:30PM.
2. Roll call: Judeen Bartos, Meghan Evoy, Kelly Farrah, Adrienne Fazzolara, Amanda Hanlin, Erin Hooper
Kevin Yezbick absent with notice.
Director Jenny Marr and Assistant Director/Recording Secretary Jordan Wright also present.
3. Approval of agenda
A MOTION by Evoy and seconded by Farrah to approve the agenda as presented; passed unanimously
4. Public Comment — Total time not to exceed 30 minutes, 3 minutes per speaker
5. Minutes: Approve October 12, 2023 regular meeting
A MOTION by Hanlin and seconded by Farrah to approve the October 12, 2023 regular meeting minutes
as presented; passed unanimously
Minutes: Approve October 12, 2023 closed session
A MOTION by Hooper and seconded by Farrah to approve the October 12, 2023 closed session minutes as
presented; passed unanimously
6. Director’s Report: Jenny Marr
Director Marr’s report highlighted library programming during the month of October. The proposed
meeting dates for 2024 were provided in the packet.
7. Acceptance of expenditures and finance reports for the month of October
Postponed to December.
8. Board Calendar of Events
The financial audit will take place the week after Thanksgiving.
9. Committee reports
A. Art & Exhibitions — Erin
See supporting documents. There’s a call out for art for a collective art show in the Spring. Residents can
provide up to 3 pieces.
B. Friends of the FPL — Kelly
The Friends are doing a 12 days of Christmas wish list for library items.
C. Equity, Diversity and Inclusion — Amanda
Hanlin is actively participating in the New Detroit Leadership series on race, and hopes to come back to the
board with recommendations and resources.
D. Finance — Judeen and Kevin
No report
E. Personnel — Adrienne
No report
F. Schools —Meghan



See supporting documents. Extensive library outreach continues to public and non-public schools, Evoy
commends the library staff for their hard work.

10. Committee membership appointments as needed

None.

11. Review action items

None.

12. Announcements/comments from board members

None.

13. ***Closed Session to be convened — For strategy and negotiation sessions connected with the
negotiation of a collective bargaining agreement if either negotiating party requests a closed hearing, in
accordance with Sec. 8(1)(c) of the Open Meetings Act (OMA} MCL 15.268.

A MOTION by Evoy and seconded by Hooper to enter a closed session at 6:53PM.

Roll call vote:

Yes: Bartos, Evoy, Farrah, Fazzolara, Hanlin, Hooper

No: 0

Return from closed session at 9:29PM

13. Adjourn

A MOTION by Evoy and seconded by Hooper to adjourn at 9:30PM; passed unanimously

Proposed minutes of this meeting will be available for public inspection at the Ferndale Area District Library, located at 222 East
Nine Mile Road, Ferndale, eight (8) business days afier the meeting. Approved minutes are available within five (5) business days
after the meeting at which they are approved (in accordance with Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267.)



Date: 12/14/2023

FADL Board of Directors
Request for Board Action

| |
[

]
.il

From: Jenny Marr
Subject: Approval of the Collective Bargaining Agreement
Summary:

On behalf of the Library Board bargaining committee, | am proud to present the tentative agreement for
approval by the FADL Board of Directors.

After months of negotiations and thoughtful discussions, we have reached an agreement that reflects
the importance of library work and a commitment to the fair treatment and support of our valued library
employees while allowing FADL to balance its fiscal responsibility to Ferndale taxpayers.

Key highlights of the union contract include:

e Fair Compensation: One of the stated priorities of the Union was to decrease the differences
in pay between the various positions on staff. The Library was not only able to meet, but to
exceed the union's initial requests for starting wages.

FADL has always strived to create a progressive work standard for what we believe is an essential
service to the community, which also allows FADL to remain competitive as a mid-sized library in close
proximity to larger communities. FADL is a Class 4 library, which represents communities with a
population of 12,000-25,999.

The following is a chart comparing the starting wages of FADL (current and with the new contract) as
compared to other Metro Detroit Class 4 libraries:

Position _Requirements Other Class 4 Current FADL _ Union Contract
Page at least 15 years of age  minimum wage ($10.10)  $12/hr $15/hr

Circ Spec. H.S. diploma or GED $10 - $14/hr $15.50/hr $17/hr

Tech. Services  some college $12 - $14/hr new position $18.50/hr
Librarian MLIS $18 - $20/hr $22 - $23.08/hr $23.10/hr

o The library’s lowest paid employees will receive an immediate 25% pay increase
o The contract also guarantees a 3% annual pay increase for all employees according to a
10-step scale.



o}

e}

Employees are potentially eligible for an annual cost of living payment, the amount of
which is determined by a number of factors, including local tax revenue and the
Consumer Price Index.

m Tying the cost of living payment to these independent economic variables
protects the library's finances (and Ferndale taxpayers) in the event of an
economic downturn. 96% of FADL revenue is from property taxes. The number
used to determine the payment is set by Oakland County, not FADL.

The Technical Services Specialist is a new position created by FADL to provide a
pathway to full-time employment that does not require a college degree.

Work-Life Balance: Demonstrating the library's commitment to the well-being of its employees,
FADL has offered a generous paid time off package.

@

New library employees will start with 7 weeks paid time off annually, inclusive of
holidays, vacation, sick, and personal time.

Current employees will receive increased vacation accrual at an accelerated rate,
building up to 9 weeks total time off by 7 years of employment.

Concurrently, the library also significantly decreased its potential liabilities regarding
PTO payout at resignation.

Employees working 8 hours per day will receive paid lunch breaks, effectively shortening
the work day by 30 minutes.

The new contract now offers library employees limited opportunities to work from home
for online training and meetings, whilst maintaining adequate staffing levels in the
building to ensure the best service possible.

Professional Development Opportunities: The contract includes a guaranteed budget to
foster a culture of continuous learning and growth. This continues FADL's longstanding history
of encouraging and supporting library staff to grow through a wide range of professional
development opportunities.

A guaranteed budget for FT employees and additional funds for each library department.
The library also increased the per diem rate for employees who travel for professional
development opportunities by 50% and will continue to pay for travel and lodging when
practicable.

Transparent Communication: The creation of a Labor-Management committee will allow for
open and transparent communication between the library’s administration and its employees,
ensuring that concerns are heard and addressed promptly.




Budgetary Context:

FADL commits over % of the operating budget to personnel costs, and this commitment will continue to
grow. Budget amendments for FY 2024 will be needed and will be presented to the Board for approval

in January.

Employee Wages & Benefits

The current voted millage began on July 1, 2017. Here is a chart of growth over time.

Wages & Benefits

$1,600,000.00
$1,400,000.00
$1,200,000.00
51,000,000.00
$800,000.00

;\ $600,000.00
i $400,000.00
\ $200,000.00

5.

FY17 FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21" FY 22 FY 23 FY 24

*Note-FY 21 was the Curbside Only year, all staff jobs & hours were preserved but no new hires or replacements occurred. FADL was
closed to the public from 3/13/2020 - 6/7/2021 (at reduced hours). FY 22 was a rebuilding year for staffing and services.

% of Operating Expenses

68%
66%
64%
62%
60%

58%

oy

FY17 FY18 FY 19 FY20 FY 21" FY22 FY23 FY24

56%

AR PRy

For further information regarding the FADL's budget and strategic plan, please visit our website at

www.fadl.org.
Recommended Action:

A Motion by

and seconded by

fo approve the Tentative Agreement

reached by the Library's bargaining committee with the Newspaper Guild of Detroit as reflected in a
draft agreement dated November 3, 2023, and ratified by the Union membership on Friday, November

24, 2023.

— g




November 3, 2023 Newspaper Guild of Detroit
To
Ferndale Area District Library %

PREAMBLE
ARTICLE 1- RECOGNITION ) 4,
ARTICLE 2- PURPOSE AND INTENT AN
ARTICLE 3- INFORMATION TO THE GUILD G B
ARTICLE 4- DUES CHECK OFF Z///// %
ARTICLE 5- NON-DISCRIMINATION

ARTICLE 6- LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE / Y

ARTICLE 7- DISCIPLINARY ACTION
ARTICLE 8- GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION
ARTICLE 9- SENIORITY

ARTICLE 10- HOURS T,
ARTICLE 11- PAID TIME OFF ) ////////// /
ARTICLE 12- LEAVES OF ABSENCE /
ARTICLE 13- INSURANCE )
ARTICLE 14- RETIREMENT /7 /
ARTICLE 15- WAGES 4%
ARTICLE 16- HIRING ¢ %
ARTICLE 17- JOB DESCRIPTION

ARTICLE 18- EVALUATIONS,

ARTICLE 19- PROFE§§I@NAL DEVELOPMENT
ARTICLE 20- AC(;;)ESS/%.”’/PERSONNEL FILES
ARTICLE 21- EXPENS)

ARTICLE 22,¢/6UTSIDE EMPLOYMENT
ARTICLE23; HEALTH AND SAFETY

ARTICLE 2f/ UNION RIGHTS AND RELEASE TIME
ARTICLE//ZS/,;éMANAGEMENT RIGHTS

AﬁTI%E 26- JOINT RESPONSIBILITIES

ARTICIE 27 - SURVEILLANCE

ARTICLE 28 - REMOTE WORK

ARTICLE 29 - COMPLETE AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 30 - DURATION

//
0%

%
D,

N 7

@
S

\\\\\\\\\

/////

APPENDIX A: WAGE HIRING MINIMUMS

APPENDIX B: DETAILED JOB DESCRIPTIONS




PREAMBLE

This Agreement is entered into by and between Ferndale Area District Library hereinaﬁefr
referred to as “FADL” or “Employer” and the Newspaper Guild of Detroit — CWA Local 34022

hereinafter referred to as “Guild” or “Union.” % e
ARTICLE 1 7
RECOGNITION //» //////%

Pursuant to and in accordance with all applicable provisions of the Mlchlgan ubhc Employment
Relations Act (PERA), as amended, Ferndale Area District Libraryf é’i*ebjf/recogmzes the Guild
as the exclusive collective bargaining representative for the posmon hs’ted in the established

G
bargaining unit, as certified by MERC Case NO. 22-1.2214-RC

<

1. In addition to the positions included in the MERC Gelt1ﬁed unit, the parties agree to
include the position of Technical Services Spec1alls

\\\\\\\

%
% s
i, o

2.. FADL agrees to notify the Guild upon C} atiofvof” a/ ny new non-exempt positions and

agrees to discuss wages and any conditions umqge to the position.
,,////

4, FADL recognizes and will 119th nt e %re with, restrain, or coerce employees in their right
to self-organization, to form,ﬂom or E{IVSSIS{ labor organizations, or to bargain collectively through
representatives of their owg/}logsmg,/m to engage in concerted activities for the purpose of
collective bargaining. 4

\%
\\\\%\

i

\

/ N L4
/
5. argammg%}l}n/ }mncludes work previously or presently performed by bargaining unit

employees, WOI‘k//Slmllftr/)n functmn to such past or present bargaining unit work, and any new
work assigned té be perfmmed by bargaining unit employees. Bargaining unit employees shall
it %nd replaced by the use of contractors or employees outside of the bargaining

not be,tern] nated
un t/;/;{ perfo,; %/fuch work.
&

@

),
4. The Uhion recognizes that FADL occasionally uses contractors, and also employs substitute

employees who may perform duties performed by bargaining unit employees. The parties
recognize and agree that the provisions in the Agreement do not apply to contractors or substitute
employees. Contractors and substitute employees will not be used to terminate or replace a
bargaining unit employee or to reduce the size of the bargaining unit.

S e




ARTICLE 2
PURPOSE AND INTENT

The purpose of this contract shall be to codify cooperation between management and workers to
achieve our shared goal of creating a library that provides the highest level of service to its
community through consistent application of the agreed-upon policies, procedures, and 5

conditions. %
// %%
//////

1. The general purpose of collective bargaining is to set rates of pay, hours gf,e %pgoyment
and other conditions of employment, as defined by the terms of this Agfe ceffichit %)1 those
employees included in the bargaining unit. // "4

2. FADL and the Union encourage to the fullest degree friendly a;)/d eoegeratlve relations
between the respective representatives at all levels and amo/ng gllf%nployees

3. FADL and the Union agree to uphold the dignity and respéc £l t the employees
administrators, the public and elected/appointed offic) g{f ///// //////////

4. Each one of us is appreciated for our comrlbut]on te t r amzatlon and pledge to treat

1. Annual Information
FADL will furnish the Guild annuaf
represented by the Guild: % /’//////////////

/

\
\
‘\\\
\%\\\\\
\\\\\\

each other with the respect we deserve no matte

//}/}

W at posmon we may hold.
%,

\\\\

-

H\\x\\\\\
O

O//TH GUILD

ARTI
INFORMATIO

et

\\\\\\.\\—\\\\\i\zo
N
> &
\ -

N

ﬁ%\\‘k\\

53
&
§

&

th ellowmg information in connection with employees

e

_.
&
L

y

-
%\\\

7,

7{// 7
a. Name w
/@ %

b. Start date Yy
C. Clasmﬁca}/en/; (Z éxample, full-time, part-time)
///

d. Rate of p ///wlfét er hourly or salary
e Numbex Of@mus worked per week for part-time
f I)ate/ f/buth
H/ome addless
o

Monthlv Information

FADL shall notify the Guild monthly in writing or electronically of:

a. New bargaining unit employees - including all the information required in Section 1.
b. Changes in job title for bargaining unit employees, salary changes by reason thereof,
and effective date, and changes of supervisor for unit employees.

¢. Resignations, retirements, deaths, promotion and/or transfers out of the bargaining unit
of bargaining unit employees, and respective dates.

e



1. Non-Discrimination

ARTICLE 4
DUES CHECK OFF

Upon an employee's voluntary written assignment, the Employer shall deduct bi-weekly from the
weekly earnings of such employee and pay to the Guild no later than the 15th day of each month
an amount equal to Guild initiation fees, dues and assessments. Payments to the Guild V\/f/ill
reflect the previous month’s deductions (example: June’s payroll deductions will be dehvér/ed to
the Guild no later than July 15th). Such amounts shall be deducted from the employé%s earl/{//lﬁ/gs
in accordance with the Guild's schedule of rates furnished to the Employer by the,Gulld An
employee's voluntary written assignment shall remain effective in accordance Wj th% telms of
such assignment. J%/////

////
U,

The Emplover shall not be liable to the Union by reason of the requiremé ts of this Apreement
ploy y q// % g

for the remittance or payment of any sum other than those Constltutmg actual deductions made
from wages earned by employees. The Union will protect an%// aye h”’a’/ mless the Employer from
any and all claims, demands, suits and other forms of llabllity ) reason of action taken or not

taken by the Employer for the purpose of complying ///)1 this AI‘UCIG

K2

U
%
%%‘f///

A // .
AR'f'I/(Z Fa ///

NON-DISCRIMINATION AND ANTI-HARASSMENT

////

\\\

\\\\\\\\

\\\\\\\‘\\\\

The Library's employment plaptlce§////a}e based on job qualifications without regard to

1g10)1 age, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, gender
/

\\\‘\§

-
race, color, national ougm /;/////

identification or expressjon, height weight, disability, genetic information or any other

characteristic. by ¥ /

Sy, /////
The library is epén//nttfé to pr0v1d1ng equal employment opportunities to otherwise

quahﬁed mdn}}dua]s with disabilities, which may include providing reasonable
accorfimodationé where appropriate. In general, it is the responsibility of the employee

or,é/pph/cant ’t(’)’équest a specific accommodation,

\Q
\\\\\\

\\\
E

W

Harassment

We strive to maintain a harassment-free working environment for all of our employees free from
intimidation, humiliation, and insult. Harassment on the basis of any lawfully protected
characteristic includes race, color, national origin, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation,

marital status, gender identification or expression, height, weight, disability, genetic information
or any other protected Classifications.




3. Respectful Work Environment
The Library and the Guild are committed to maintaining a respectful work environment. The
following behaviors are inconsistent with a respectful working environment (a)verbal abuse,
which includes, but is not limited to, obscene, threatening, humiliating or intimidating language;
and (b) non-verbal abuse, which includes acts that are threatening, humiliating or intimidating,.
Individual, group, or library meetings shall not be utilized to threaten, humiliate or intimidate
bargaining unit members or other library employees. Employees shall suffer no retaliation for
reporting incidents of concern.

&
&

\\
\\
\\‘\\\

¢

ARTICLE 6 e
LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE O, 2

The parties will establish a joint Labor-Management Committee (LMC), ¢cg i ppsed% three (3)

union- appointed members and three (3) management-appointed memb{{ ’/The urpose of the

LLMC is to avoid misunderstandings, promote and improve COlIlml;//;lngtl.n an/d problem solving.

The LMC cannot change the language or the application of the colJ } bar gaining agreement.
/// /f/ ///

The LMC is empowered to deal with subjects outside of tlje e 1abor ﬁgreement as well as with the
application of the agreement.

\\

&

Y,

%

s

The LMC will be established within 30 days & f’/the 1 /a/tlﬁca jon of this agreement. The LMC will
i T
meet quarterly, but have the ability to meet morgiﬁéc/f/// erﬁly when both parties agree it is

G

\\\\\

\\3\
\
x\x\x\\

8

necessary. o %
7%
%//ARTICLE 7

DI%S(%;/// /)JINARY ACTION

%

FADI will take d1801p11naly7acf19/n cffnly for just cause. Disciplinary action may be taken for
,/

substandard job per forn}a/;}/ge s,/;/l;ety violations, excessive absenteeism, inability or failure to

work under super v%;my;d)re/otlon or other problems that may arise.

&y Ay
/ 4///////

%4////

Disciplinary Acti6ii: /Dlsmphnaly action shall mean a written warning, written reprimand,

/
suspension w1th0ut pay, or discharge. Counseling, retraining, and demotions are not disciplinary
i,
'1Ct1011 Notﬁl

\

,m%lns Article 1s intended to preclude a supervisor from verbally discussing

N v,
lsolged in §é/nces of minor misconduct with an employee in lieu of administering disciplinary

aCtIOH ////

FADL is responsible for identifying alleged problems with employee behavior or performance
and assisting in their resolution. Prior to taking disciplinary action, a meeting shall be held to
assure that all relevant information has been collected and considered. The meeting shall include
the affected employee(s), Department Head, Director or Assistant Director, and union steward or
representative.

The Guild may grieve Disciplinary Action through the Grievance Procedure.

5




Any disciplinary documentation will be removed from personnel files after 24 months.

ARTICLE 8
GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION

The Guild has the right to file a grievance in accordance with the following procedures outlined
below regarding unfair treatment and/or disputes with FADL relating, but not limited to,
disciplinary action, interpretation or application of the contract, or unilateral changes by FADL

to well-established past employment practices. %
o N,
Earnest efforts will be made to settle issues with informal discussions prior to reducm/ ﬁ'lemi/%
writing. The parties shall meet and seek possible resolution of the issue. /,/// %
v 4
Step One: f%/f%/////////

The Guild, when appealing such action shall submit a written complaint{tlic “Gtievance”) to the
the Director or Assistant Director within thirty (30) business days aftef% the ﬁ?ggrleved Party

knew, or reasonably should have known, of the act or condition ons /ICh the Employer action is
based. Included in the Grievance, Aggrieved Employee shall dBSGI‘le thie relief or remedy

sought. / @’//////

)

FADL shall meet with The Guild, but 110tw1thstand1ng ,thefgmegémg, FADL shall respond to the
Grievance in writing within seven (7) business days /gbl s’mess days are defined as Monday
through Friday, excluding holidays, Satulday/s},///gm /S gnd other library closures), in an
attempt to agree on a settlement to the Guevaﬁcé//”/// i}/l}///f( 1] [#1s unable (o gather information from
all parties, including the supervisor, witnesses, {1/ d/or the Board, then they shall receive an extra
seven (7) business days to conduct fur the}/ 1nvest1gat10ns and respond to the Grievance. If FADL
is unable to respond within this deadlm(e ///// if The Guild and FADL cannot reach a resolution
within five (5) business days of The Gu1ld sfrecelpt of FADL’s Response, the parties will

S
proceed to the next Step of these,,Gnéyance Procedures.

2 /////
/
////// £

\\

%
/’
Step Two: Optional Medl 1011 I,

If both parties agree, th @ vy ‘¢hbose to utilize mediation to attempt to resolve the issue. Upon
agreement to enter /medlatlonff’ the parties agree to use a free Michigan Employment Relations

Commission (MERC) nedfator for such mediation.
PN

/
t

Alter natlvely/, upon the rejection of the grievance by FADL, The Guild and the affected

emp /oyee(/) Jhay, stibmit a statement for placement in the employee personnel file in accordance
W /sec/}lon 5/ of/lullald Plawecki Act. Upon request employees shall be allowed to view their
own pelsonnel file.

Step Three: Arbitration
If the Grievance is not settled in Step Two, The Guild shall notify the Director in writing within
ten business (10) days of the Response Deadline of its intent to proceed to arbitration.

Within ten business (10) days of being notified of The Guild’s intent to arbitrate, an impartial
arbitrator shall be mutually agreed upon by both parties. If the parties cannot agree upon an
arbitrator within ten (10) business days, the parties shall request that theMichigan Employment
Relations Commission (MERC) submit a list of seven (7) possible arbitrators. The parties shall

6




alternate striking names, with The Guild striking the first name, and after each party has struck
three (3) names each, the remaining person on the list shall be appointed as the arbitrator (the
“Arbitrator”).

FADL and The Guild agree to equally split the expense of an arbitration. The written decision of
the Arbitrator shall be final and binding upon both parties.

ARTICLE 9
SENIORITY %

7,

Seniority means length of continuous employment. Employment shall be deemed cont /;nu s
//

unless interrupted by dismissal for just and sufficient cause, resignation, or refu t///’ ,/a ¢ept an
offer to rehire into the classification in which the employee worked when d;sx;//u (9
1) Reduction in Force (Layoffs) ! %
o
1. When layoffs are deemed necessary by FADL, dismissals to/red ce the force shall be
made in the inverse order of bargaining unit senior 1ty/ff//(//)//n z/i/}f/’fl/oﬁg the employees within

7/
the particular job title affected.

\\

\\

%\\

\

\

\\\\

\

f///ﬂ////

2. Dismissals to reduce the force shall proceed acg Qldll]g to the following time table:
7,
o |

1) At least 30 dayg ,,pl 191 10 the’ nfﬁended effective date the Company

shall give notice of the lay()’f/fs/inc!udmg the number to be laid off from

specific job clas&ﬁcatlons/Notlce of opportunity for volunteers to resign
shall be issued af’t AHis time.

% J

2)  4Ng l t/’r than 14 days after the notice of layoff any employees

w1sh;7ng /to/ voluntee1 to resign must submit their resignations and
/ /

ployees desmng to bump into another classification must give notice of
////’/”/» ///

11;1’[%’& ;(/)// bump
&

Sy

“accept or decline proffered resignations. The Company shall also at this

time give notice of its intent to use any exemptions from Jayoff by
seniority and the Company will give final notification of those employees

\\\

15 days prior to the intended effective date the Company will

who are to be laid off.

3. An employee dismissed to reduce the force shall be placed upon a rehiring list for a
period of eighteen (18) months. The Library shall fill all vacancies with persons on the
rehire list by recalling in order of bargaining unit seniority persons who have worked in
the classification in which the vacancy occurs or who have satisfactorily performed the
duties of that classification in the past. Time spent on a rehiring list by dismissed




employees shall not constitute breaks in continuity of service and shall be counted as
service time in computing seniority.

4. An employee who leaves the bargaining unit shall have their seniority frozen, for
purposes of layoff and recall only, as of the date of leaving the bargaining unit. If that
employee returns to the bargaining unit, seniority shall resume upon the date of return to
the bargaining unit.

\\\\

2) Reduction in Force Effects /// Yy
L !

1. In the event of a reduction in force, FADL will meet with the Guild and}aargam/effects

7
ARTICLE 10 %/ %
o

///,
HOURS %////%%

All full-time employees shall work a forty (40) hour wor kweek/and shdll be credited with

overtime for all time worked in excess of forty (40) hours ////A{l/ba /gammg unit employees shall
work with their department head to avoid overtime whenei/el 13//6//(1ble
% A

Employees working eight (8) or more hours z%t;//e;l)lnt/l% /}/)/ % ithirty (30) minute paid lunch and
one paid 15 minute break, not to be taken w1tl11/n I/houl of/t/ he aforementioned 30 minute break.
Breaks are not to be taken at the beginning or thé end of a shift. Employees may not forgo a
break in order to shorten the total length-of their sh1ft Employees working four (4) hours or
more but less than eight (8) hours are éntitlél to one (1) 15 minute break. It is the employee’s

'7]’
responsibility to coordinate with, the1r su/ﬁ/é/ﬁnscn to schedule breaks.

Yy i,
//////////,//
7

2,
Z Uy,
Breaks must be scheduled 1h/a wi dy, to ensure appropriate coverage. The library may require that

\\

=P

%

\

///

/// Do
you change your bleak;p 1l /9

7
9

&meet the workload under extreme circumstances.

S
\\§\\\

%
//7///

\\\\

2%

In addition to th;/gwal,g/gf i6d, all breastfeeding employees will be provided reasonable break

7% &
time to express,mllk?duuﬁg the first two (2) years of the child's life. The break will be paid. The
library will, pr0v1ﬂe a pnvate area in which the employee may express breast milk. Employees

may, {{ée thei i p fivate office area for milk expression, if they prefer.
/// /////

Oveltlmé shall be worked when required by the employer. The employer shall compensate for
authonzed overtime at the rate of time and one-half in cash or compensatory time by mutual
agreement.

No employee shall be required to work a regularly scheduled shift which will require them to
return to duty less than twelve (12) hours after their leaves duty, exclusive of overtime.

Employees shall be given two (2) weeks' notice of their assigned work schedule. The assigned
work schedule may be changed upon mutual agreement.

8




The employer will make an effort to ensure that full-time employees get two days off per week
(consecutively when possible), and will make an effort to ensure that full-time employees do not
work more than two weekend shifts per month. Exceptions can be made upon mutual
agreement. [n rare cases, full-time employees may be asked to work more than 2 weekend shifts
per month and will be scheduled 1 weekend shift the following month. Employees can agree to
work more weekend shifts by mutual agreement. If an employee is unable to work a scheduled
weekend shift, the employee will be assigned an extra weekend shift the following month.

w

B,
Employees are expected to be on site and ready to work from the time their shift begins f/,{'/;f,when

S . . . ) oy,
their shift ends, excluding the aforementioned break periods. 1f an employee is runn;/ﬁ/@ ;/,;}te//"-by”

- - . rye . - & %, 7.
15 minutes or more, it is the employee’s responsibility to communicate to their ;}Bg@sor that

. . . , . 7 Ty,
they are running late and provide an estimated time of arrival. If the employee’,s"é p%}viéor is not
working that day, the employee should communicate to another supervisor g ployee working

o

that day that they are running late and to provide an estimated time of arfival. I#an employee
2

. ‘ . : .
arrives to work late by any period of time, the employee will be expect:/a//c-l,,/-/}o éither stay late to

S

make up that time or take Personal Time to account for the mlssedétlmé% Cbnsistent or excessive
. e . )
tardiness may result in disciplinary action. /////ff'/,////f////
Vs
A ,
ARTICLE 11 ¢ ‘o
PAID TIMEg@E;};/ Y,

7

S
Q

% s
2
7

Library employees shall be paid for ten (10) pla@ed library closures annually.

1. Planned Library Closures, Paid

7
New Year's D P é//’ |
ew Year’s Day 4 /W
. % &
Memorial Day n ’%
)
Juneteenth by Ty,
Independence Day Y

Labot Dz‘ly‘ @/ v /// )
Thanksgiving Day ’/fr// Gt

Day after Thanképiving

Chrlstmas/gl/yég// Day
R 46 @ “

Clm__stmasgy/ a}/ 7

%, ///‘ o ,,//
NewiY ear’s’Eve Da
lgw? ////72?11 S“Ew y
Additionaﬁly, the library may be closed during “Dream Cruise Weekend”. Library employees
will be paid for the days they would have normally been scheduled to work had the library been

open.

Part time employees will be paid for all of the aforementioned days in Article 11, Section 1
based on their regularly scheduled hours for that day.

Planned Library Closures, Unpaid




The following library closures will go unpaid, except for those who have been scheduled to
work on that day due to consistent schedule rotations.

Easter (if the library is closed)
The Sunday before Memorial Day
The Sunday before Labor Day
The Saturday after Thanksgiving

Employees are encouraged to speak with their supervisors to find an opportunity to mak%‘/a,/gp
%,

these hours or to use Personal Time or Vacation. P,
2
. .
Unplanned Library Closures ////////// % 3
7 2
W'

L : . -4
In the event that the library is closed due to unforeseen circumstances, Lib G z;,,;//r/ﬁ”ﬁlgyees that

were scheduled on that day will be paid. If the library closes early, or t} //c%%n% is delayed due
to weather, all scheduled employees who report for work will recei/y;ezpay%for all or the remainder

of their scheduled work shift (does not apply to those who are schéid/”l’ec;ﬁto be off or have

already called off or who had previously scheduled a paid dayjf/ﬁfﬁ%}%ﬁforeseen circumstances

can include but are not limited to: Inclement weather, saf;%y %ﬁpnce?ns, and building issues. The
T

[l - . . // W »
decision to close the library because of unforeseen Clrc/'l.;ms’t%nces 1s made by the Library

. . . . . a .
Director, with consultation with a Library Board meg}lbel%%‘ 1n the Director’s absence, the

. . . . . %-’" S, ///’/z.,, | %//3
Assistant Director, with consultation with a [4Biary, Béard niember.

R

9,
Voting Time !

V.

. . //,f - % N . .
Up to two (2) hours of time for voting will be allowed on Election Day for state, national, city or
county elections for employggs ,yy//,fho ‘are registered voters. It is the responsibility of the employee
to provide 1 week notice 0_%916%%9U[‘Szth€)/ intend to be gone for managerial approval.

s Y
Documentation may be reqfiited. Y

Personal Time: “7 7o

SN

R

Full-Time Employeé’sfz)*’ ill have the right to declare forty (40) hours of Personal Time each fiscal
Z

year (FADL#s fis¢al year runs July 1 - June 30). Employees shall be granted such hours on Jul

o L0 y Y
1 each year,/ /,;2
The number of Personal Time hours will be pro-rated for part-time employees based on their
average regularly scheduled hours. Personal Time can be taken in % hour increments and must
be approved in advance by the employee’s-department head.

Upon hire, new employees shall be granted a prorated number of hours based on the remaining
length of the fiscal year (July 1 - June 30).

Personal Time must be used within the fiscal year or the hours shall be lost. Personal Time may
be used during the employee’s probationary period, but attendance may be a factor in whether or

10

SR



not an employee successfully completes their probationary period. Unused Personal Time will
not be paid out.

Vacation:

Vacation hours are not granted annually, but accrued at an hourly rate. The hourly accrual rates
are as follows:

1. Less than 3 years of continuous service: .0384616 hours of Vacation earned perhour
worked '
(Full-Time equivalent of 2 weeks per annum)

2. 3-7 years of continuous service: .0576924 hours of Vacation earned ,p,ei' h(')'u_g_f.':W()rked
(Full-Time equivalent of 3 weeks per annum) o

3. 7+ years of continuous service: .0769231 hours of Vacation earﬁed per hour worked
(Full-Time equivalent of 4 weeks per annum)

The use of vacation hours must be approved in advance by the:employee's Department Head.
Vacation hours must be taken in a minimum of 2 hour increments. Any vacation lasting longer
than 2 weeks must be approved by the employee’s D'epai't_me'nt Head and the Library Director, or
in the Library Director’s absence, the Assistant Director. a

Resigning employees giving two weeks' written notice will be paid for accumulated but unused
vacation time. Terminated employees or resigning employees who fail to give the requested
notice will not be paid for any accumulated vacation time. No employee’s bank of Vacation
shall exceed 120 hours. :

Vacation hours shall accrue during the probationary period, but are not to be used until an
employee successfully completes their probationary period. If an employee resigns, is
terminated, or is otlief_wise no longer employed by FADL during their probationary period,
vacation hours will not be paid.

3. Sick leave

Full-Time Employees will have the right to declare eighty (80) hours of Sick Leave each fiscal
year (FADL’s fiscal year runs July 1 - June 30). Employees shall be granted such hours on July
1 each year.

The number of Sick Leave hours will be pro-rated for part-time employees based on their
average regularly scheduled hours,

Sick Leave must be taken in a minimum of 15 minute increments. Any Sick Leave lasting
longer than 3 work days may require written documentation of the employee’s illness.

11

e i st e e oA e 12



Unused Sick Leave hours will not be paid out. Any unused sick leave may be rolled over to the
following year. No employee’s bank of Sick Leave shall exceed 200 hours.

Upon hire, new employees shall be granted a prorated number of Sick Leave hours based on the
remaining length of the fiscal year (July 1 - June 30).

Sick Leave may be used during the employee’s probationary period, but attendance may be a

factor in whether or not an employee successfully completes their probationary period.
B,

i,
. 4 . L . . . . . y//
Sick Leave can be used for the employee’s illness or injury and to care for an ill or m/J//,g/%d %////
. L - v 77
member or their household, including pets. Y,

Wy

If an employee has used all of their sick leave, the employee must use any remaiping’personal

time before taking unpaid time off due to illness. ,/”%“W
e N

v
4 %@

4. Excessive Absenteeism: %
s
U

//////
. . /@/ | -~
Excessive Absenteeism refers to repeated or prolonged absen//}@g,,fgu%/;};rpass acceptable limits

set by Article 11: Paid Time Off.  All Sick Leave and Per%og;//)/{/,’l"iﬁae must be expended before

e . . .
an employee can take unpaid time off. Any unpaid abseﬁ;;és aft"e’%oth Sick Leave and Personal

Time are expended may be considered Excessive A%S’fé%?

geisSin. After 3 unpaid absences over a
rolling 3-month period, the employer may con i

T .
duct atfp,Atténgance Review.
U, Vs

The Attendance Review will involve the employgee, the Library Director and/or Assistant

2,

N

S

$
TR

&
B

Director, Employee’s Departiment Head,.and a répresentative of the Guild.
e
Yy G / . . '
ewis todiscuss the employee’s attendance record, identify
H H P e . . . .
any underlying issues, and eXpl6feaydys to improve attendance. Employee information
b o Yty
V/"?///y/ /
compliance with appllcg,blfc;? awsy
7
2
. A, g
Review processf @, @
G %

7
P
liZondjtions, or personal circumstances will be kept confidential in
%
7
W,

e
The purpose of the Attendance Revig
%2,
regarding attendance, heali] It
Reasonable accommagdations, where appropriate, will be considered during the Attendance

—
S

Based:on the gutcoime of the Attendance Review, the employer may implement corrective
ns

These ﬁ%c;;//t/ions may include verbal counseling or Disciplinary Action, up to and including
termmatlg//n, as per the Disciplinary Action policy (Article 7) outlined in this agreement.
Earned Paid Time Off (PTO) prior to the ratification of this Agreement:

Any unused Paid Time Off earned prior to signing of this agreement will be added as follows:

Upon ratification of this agreement:

12

77
15 in pfopottion to the severity, frequency, and circumstances of the excessive absenteeism.
7




1. Earned but unused PTO will be added to an employee’s Vacation Bank up to
the limit of 120 hours,

2. Any remaining earned but unused PTO beyond 120 hours will be paid out on
the first paycheck following the ratification of this agreement.

ARTICLE 12
LEAVES OF ABSENCES
%
| 8
1) Paid Parental Leave 72, /@%/

The Ferndale Area District Library (“Library™) will provide up to eight (8) weeks of’pald@%
parental leave to employees following the birth of an employee’s child or the pl %tff@rﬁ if;

/&
e of
y PG S

paid parental leave 1s to enable the employee to care for and bond with a; B/Wb Inora

re
newly adopted or newly placed child. f/é/ W,
/ // o //f//

of a child with an employee in connection with adoption or foster care, The

\

\

Eligibility
Eligible employees must meet the following criteria: %
e Have been employed with the Library for at leaf,t///ljg/
to be consecutive). /{///4% %
e Have worked at least 1040 hours duung the 142 coﬁecutwe months immediately
preceding the date the leave would begh

B

e Be a full- or part-time, regular employe///

In addition, employees must meet one of/the followmg criteria:

2,

S

Have given birth to a child

// ///
Be a spouse or comm1tted pé

Have adopted a chlldfor been placed with a foster child (in either case, the child must be

age 17 or youngé%’/

e The adoptlc;/ll%of /e);f//s.pouse s or partner’s child(ren) is excluded from this policy.

fer of a person who has given birth to a child.

/////

Each week of pald p/' enta1 leave is compensated at 100 percent of the employee’s regular,

strai rht tuﬁ/é/ ffv}/eekly pay. Paid parental leave will be paid on regularly scheduled pay dates,

/////,/

Approved paid parental leave may be taken at any time during the twelve (12) month period

1rnmed1afély following the birth, adoption or placement of a child with the employee. Paid
parental leave may not be used or extended beyond this time frame.

Paid parental leave must be taken in a minimum of one-week increments. Employees must
provide the requested weeks desired to be taken at the time the request for paid parental leave is
made. Any unused paid parental leave will be forfeited.

13




2) Jury Duty

Upon termination of the individual’s employment at the Library, they will not be paid for any
unused paid parental leave for which they were eligible.

The Library will maintain all benefits for employees during the paid parental leave period just as
if they were taking any other Library paid leave such as paid vacation leave or paid sick leave. If
a Library holiday occurs while the employee is on paid parental leave, such day will be charged
to holiday pay; however, such holiday pay will not extend the total paid parental leave
entitlement.

\%@*

S

s

An employee who takes paid parental leave will be afforded the same level of job p,rofe@t;/ nfor

\

the period of time that the employee is on paid parental leave as if the employee/\/y §/f5n FI\;//f

ifyi ve
qualifying leave, e
7%, W
- e
Requests for Paid Parental Leave @/ /”/%

o

The employee must provide the library director with notice of the requ/ef%ﬁm leave in writing at

/ W

least 30 days prior to the proposed date of the leave (or if the leave/ was not foreseeable as soon
as possible). Requests for leave will not be reasonably denied / ////////
& /f*/

/
@,,;};,/ ////

, W,
1) Bereavement Leave /// /’////// . .
In the event that a death occurs in an employee S 1mmed1 }//f amily, that employee will
i

be granted up to three (3) consecutive days off With pay//f’o scheduled hours, If the employee is
/ /// ‘%////
required to travel more than 500 roundtrip miles,to atténd’a funelal or service during that time,
/
the employee will be granted an additional two (2) days of bereavement leave to accommodate

Vi
travel. Documentation may belequne 4

4, ) |
' \ &
Immediate family is deﬁned as an/en{ployee s spouse, domestic partner, children,
ik
parents, siblings, parents- ln/J;lw///grandparents grandparents-in-law,
i,
stepparents, stepchildre andc}nldren in-laws, uncles, aunts, or other relatives in the

employee’ shousehgld/ / /

////%//%

\\\

QO

\\

Ny

X

\\\

&
\\\\\
\
\\\
\\\\\\

/
A legulal fu /01 palt -time employee who is called to serve and does serve on jury duty shall be

V&

pald tlie dlfferen/”ce between the employee's regular wage and jury duty pay that an employee

reé/wes fro ///the court, excluding mileage and travel fees. The employee should provide

,;,%4,
verification of any pay received from the court to the supervisor.

An employee who works the day shift and is excused from jury duty by noon is expected
to return to work at the library, although an employee's combined hours of work and jury
duty should not exceed eight hours for that day.

The employee must give the library prior notice that they has been summoned for jury
duty.

14




3) Military Leave
Employees are eligible for military leaves of absence. An employee who enters into military
service or is called into active duty by a branch of the United States Armed Forces or state
military service, will be granted an unpaid temporary leave of absence and is eligible for
reinstatement in accordance with the Uniformed Service Employment and Reemployment Rights
Act (USERRA), the Michigan Military Leaves and Protection Act and other applicable laws.

Y,
The specific terms and nature of the employee’s right to return to work after a military //////

//
leave are governed by law. If you have any questions about military leaves of abseng g// % “w

%
please direct them to the Library Director. /// %, v

W

4) Unpaid Leave of Absence //@/ ”/////////

Employees may be granted a leave of absence for good and Sufﬁcient /2115 " within the
K

discretion of the Library Director, depending upon workloads and’ b €iriéss considerations.

77 /
Generally, a leave of absence for any reason will not extend b’éffz s’1’§<’(6) months, except as

, / s
required by law or as otherwise stated below. @/f’/ /,/,;//// ///

o
Py, Ty,
A leave of absence generally is without pay or beneﬁts unl/%ss paid leave is required by law or
approved by the Library Board as an accomm”j”dat}/%l nder//appllcable law. For unpaid leaves,
% L, At
the library requires employees to substitute unfls/ed “vacatibn time, unused personal, and unused

sick time for any leave of absence requested By//substltutmg leave, you continue to receive pay

but your unpaid leave of absence avai /a e/1§ Ieduced.

y
%

1 Y //;////

%%

The terms of the group health'i msurange plan allow the employee to continue their health
B, //
insurance at their own expeyse fo; nmety (90) days. Employees should see the Library Director

when desiring to continy /e /oup//health insurance during a leave of absence.
/ %

R

N

W

-
\\\\\

%:’

\

\\

Benefits that opelg//te on ai”ﬁ/a’ccumu]atlon basis [such as Vacation Time or Sick Leave Time], on
// ///

the basis of actual hou/rs worked will not accumulate during a leave of absence, nor will an

/

\

]ﬁed to paid holidays and "miscellaneous absences” during the leave,

As/é;%on as 'an"employee knows that they will need a leave of absence, they must submit a
completed Leave Request Form to the Library Director. When possible, thirty (30) days’ notice
is required. In the event of an emergency, requests should be submitted no later than forty-eight
(48) hours following the commencement of the injury, iliness, disability or qualifying exigency.
If the employee cannot contact the Library Director personally, they should have someone
contact the library on their behalf.

During the leave of absence, employees must notify the Library Director of any changes in the
reason for the leave or to the expected return date. If the employee seeks an extension of the

15




leave, a specific request in writing for approval of an extension must be submitted prior to the
expiration of the approved leave. At the end of the leave period, the employee will return to a
position that is available and they are qualified to perform. The library retains the right to
terminate and/or replace an employee who does not return to work upon expiration of an
approved leave. Employees may not be employed full-time by anyone other than the library
while on a leave of absence.

ARTICLE 13 W
INSURANCE AND DISABILITY %///
iy, /
Healthcare Coverage . // % Yy
//% L 7

//
1. FADL shall provide medical, dental, and vision insurance for each employee/ o /KDL shall pay

100% of the employee’s premium, as long as FADL’s total healthcare expér //1’/§e§/, aterfess than the

“hard cap” dictated by 2011 Public Act 152. Any healthcare expensesf g%/éedmg the hard cap
will be split equally amongst qualifying employees. Employees m //,y/add/spouses domestic

partners, and eligible dependents to their plan but the employee will/be /esp0n81ble for paying
w

\\\\\

100% of the premium for those individuals. /// o
/ 7
@ /
L . . . // //// ,/
2. Bargaining unit representatives shall be included in annﬁal discussions with the insurance

////f <<//
broker concerning renewal options and any changes/{ to the//plan(s) for the following year.

Changes to the plan(s) shall be made only w1th’/mutua1/ag?e/ement between FADL and The Guild.
// // Dy A,
)

3. If an employee has medical, dental or vision coverage under the policy of a spouse, domestic

partner or parent, FADL shall reimbur; /é/t//h,e empfoyee for the amount paid for such monthly
-

premium(s) (if any), up to 75% of the ount FADL would pay for employee coverage through

/ /
the FADL plan(s). If applicable,the 1611];/1/)1./![ 'sement shall be added to the employee’s salary

%,/ //////
/)//
/"Z////

W

through their paycheck. /////
/

\\\,
\\\

/
//
////

} 4

//

f////
Short-Term Dl;;:b//}
%,
Employa pfud sh Or rt term disability insurance pays eligible employees a portion of their earnings
if t}ey mlss tlme at w01k because of a disabling illness or injury. Eligible employees include
.

/
gular F ull//tlme employees or Part-time employees who work at least 30 hours per week on a
regular ly/§cheduled basis.

@
,Qg\
© \\\\\

.

Disability is defined in The Hartford’s contract with FADL, as is coverage benefits and limits. A
copy of the Hartford’s contract with FADL and be obtained upon request from the FADL
director.

Once employees are approved for coverage, they will be eligible to collect their employer paid
short term disability insurance benefit starting on the 8th day after your injury or 8th day of

16




sickness. Their benefit could continue for up to 12 weeks. The weekly short-term benefit may be
reduced by other income the employee receives.

Long-Term Disability

Employer-paid long term disability insurance pays eligible employees a portion of their earnings
if they miss time at work because of a disabling illness or injury. Eligible employees include
Regular Full-time employees or Part-time employees who work at least 30 hours per week on a
regularly scheduled basis. %

S, R
Disability is defined in The Hartford’s contract with FADL, as is coverage benefits and 11m1ts A

copy of the Hartford’s contract with FADL and be obtained upon request from th” ”FABL

\

director.
. . . % U,
Earnings are defined as in The Hartford’s contract with FADL. %/ Y o, ®
& %
///‘///’/4\%

Coverage goes into effect subject to the terms and conditions of the pcﬁlcy “An employee must be

actively at work with their employer on the day the coverage, takes/effeé/t An employee must be

disabled for at least 90 days before they can receive an employel 9é1d long term disability
P

insurance benefit payment.

/// Z:
,//

Y,
The library provides workers' disability compengatlon msm ance at no cost to the employee. In

&
the event of a work-related injury or condition, workers' disability compensation insurance may

//////
provide wage loss benefits. Followmg//a/}/ac/cldent at work or upon learning of a medical
condition arising out of employment’

%o il
Director so that a report may bg

/4///////

require a medical release puog/}to”’allowmg an employee to return to work. The library may
D
require that the employeé/ /1//bm/1t ‘to a necessary medical evaluation by a doctor selected by the

library or the libra fils 1ﬁsul%}’i’é’e carrier.

/’/ ,y///
£ R
Life and AD&D u rance
2 /',

\
\\
\§\\

\\\\

Workers Comp

fiths the employer, an employee must notify the Library

d with the library's insurance provider. The library will

L"
co_

ARTICLE 14
RETIREMENT

FADL will provide a retirement benefit through a 401(a) contribution for full-time employees.
The employer will contribute 2% of a full-time employee's gross wages. Full-time employees
have the option to contribute to optional 457(b) and/org Roth IRA plans.

17




Full-time employees can contribute additional amounts through payroll deductions.

ARTICLE 15
WAGES AND CLASSIFICATION

1. Upon ratification of the contract, all employees wages will move to the corresponding
step as set in Appendix A. Example: An employee at Step 2 on the existing pay scale
will immediately move to Step 2 on the pay scale in Appendix A.

2. Upon ratification of the contract, employees will receive retroactive pay to July ,t) 2023
based on the difference between the applicable rate set in Appendix A and thg/empléyg:es
rate of pay as of July 1st, 2023. Retroactive pay shall not exceed six (6) mofiths of/@

i,
wages. g
3. Upon ratification of the contract, employees will receive an annual %@g A % tment
payment as described in Article 15, Section 11.

4, The above changes in 1, 2, 3 will be processed in the first payr@ll follgwmg ratification.
A,

5. All bargaining unit employees shall receive a step increases ccmf ng to Appendix A.
annually on the first pay period after July 1st of each y /c ,/// %se will apply to the
whole pay period.

6. No employee on the payroll on the effective date@f t111§ g’reement or subsequently hired
during the term of this Agreement shall 1ecely legs ‘than the rates of pay set below.

7. Wage Hiring Minimums (see Appeg/ lix )

Y ’”////////// )
8. Part-time employees shall be paid on n/ h01111);/ba51{ equivalent to the weekly minimum

salary provided for that employee's clasé; ication and experience.
2,
9. There shall be no reduction in saleyes during the life of this Agreement.
10. Nothing in this Agreement sgall/prevent the employer from granting increases above top

v

minimum, bonus payments atid Sfter compensation in addition to contractual wages. The

’/// K

Guild will be notlﬁed at//the fittie such increases, bonus payments or other compensation

v

.f;,

/d tist //

is made.

11. An annual wagefa ment payment may be made dependent upon the projected
property tax@ revenu /a?f provided by the County of Oakland each Spring. If the Taxable
Value fo,l/the Femdale Area District Library decreases from the previous year, then no
wage adjustment payment will be made. The Taxable Value for FADL is the same as the

/ Clt)/{//;?//f/Femdale and 18 determined in accordance with the Headlee Rollback, as reflected

7
y &N MéL//Ql 1.34d.

A

\\\\5

’/////,/

T//l//l/e annual wage adjustment payment will be a one-time payment paid on the first payroll
after August 15 of each year. It will be a percentage of the gross wages earned by each
employee during the previous fiscal year. It will be calculated based on the following
factors, including the millage reduction fraction (MRF) as provided by the County of
Oakland:

3% if the MRF is between 0.9900 - 1.0000

18



2% if the MRF is between 0.9800 - 0.9899

1% if the MRF is 0.9799 or less

0% if the Taxable Value for the FADL decreases from the previous year, regardless of
the MRF

The annual wage adjustment percentage will be communicated to the Union prior to the
FADL Budget Hearing in May of each year.

12, Payment of wages shall be made bi-weekly and in United States check or dlrect dep%su
13. Should the employer create a new job or job classification in the bargaining ,///mt ’“@ w
should an existing job be modified to the extent that a dispute arises betwee,n the parties

///

as to the appropriate minimum for such modified job, the employer and@ Ggild will

meet to determine the appropriate minimum. If agreement on the ap/p/ @prlate/l/mmmum

%
Dy

cannot be reached, the Guild may submit the dispute to final and’bl nding ‘arbitration

%

under Article 8. The new minimum shall be effective upon the//,date the new or modified
/

job was created. 2
e //////////
ARTICLE 16 @/
HIRING %/2 &

FADL shall notify all current employees of vacanples//oﬁcun ent or new positions via email. The

e /;/
notice should include the job title, desired quahf}{/ﬁ(/)ns,/]//b description and pay rate.

///
Current employees shall have five (5) ] b?// IcSS days to apply for the position. Current employees
/
11

that meet the position’s required quaglﬁ,//////ons shall be interviewed and given first consideration

prior to external candidates being: telwewed Successful applicants shall be chosen based on

i
their qualifications such as’e/:xpen;nce skill, and job-related knowledge.
//// ///’
/// 47/,%/

When in FADL’s ju. //;gment ;he qualifications of an internal applicant and an outside applicant
are equal, FADL shall awaxd the position to the internal bidder.

\\\.\.

//? //

Where FADL,}l/s’/de01d|11g between two internal applicants whose qualifications are equal, the

" S

%\

emplo@ee ylth Hi ghel seniority shall be given primary consideration.
////4 i, //,,4,,///

If an eniployee is not awarded a position, upon request, FADL will meet with the employee and,
at the employee's option, a representative of the Guild to discuss the reasons for non-selection.
The meeting must be scheduled as promptly as possible.

ARTICLE 17
JOB DESCRIPTION

FADL will provide each employee, within one (1) week of the employee's start date, a job

19




description of the duties and responsibilities which the employee is expected to perform, in a
standardized organizational format. A copy of the job description will be
maintained in the employee's personnel file.

For complete job descriptions for all current bargaining unit positions, see Appendix B.
For changes to job descriptions made afler the initial hire, the employee will have the

opportunity to share input regarding changes to their job description through their Supe%lsor
prior to FADL's finalization of the revised description. FADL retains the right to establlsh/@

positions and define and revise job descriptions as needed to carry out the work of th// %
s
organization, / % . W
/
ARTICLE 18 %//f% //////
4/
EVALUATIONS e N
//é %

Within the first three (3) months of employment and at least once é,y Gaithereafter, every

oo b A

employee and their supervisor will carry out an evaluation and/pypare/a p10fess1onal
development plan to achieve goals. The supervisor and em loyee ) will discuss both individual

{ s

n
interests, professional development, and orgamzatlonal néeds dm‘mg this process.

/@@
W

\\\\\\\

\
@

4'/////, % %

ARTICUEL . ’
PROFESSIONAL/DEVELOPMENT

I

-
1. Training to perform assigned duties/nd work functions
K .

FADL shall provide tlammg/to a/ll em l6yécs beginning a new position. This training shall
% g,

include everything necessary for this: employee to perform the essential functions of their role and

must begin within seven (7){day s%f the employee’s start date in that position.

//’7// ////////7

B

p

\
oY
Y N
\\\\g§

I~
R

T
\\\\\\\\\\
S

2. Employer- lequu editra mmg
/

2, K74

FADL shall pay/;he é/i“(penses of any training it deems necessary for employees' performance and

requi ;s eiﬁ//ﬁ yees 10 participate in. Time spent at Employer-required trainings shall be

00}1 1deled/1 egulal work time, and the Expenses Policy described in Article 21 shall apply for

K 7

G,
any asSomated travel expenses.
///

3. Employee-initiated training or education

FADL encourages employees to pursue professional development opportunities such as courses,

seminars, frainings, workshops, or conferences that will assist and/or improve their work at
FADL and help them make a long-term commitment to working at the organization.

Each year, each employee will work with their supervisor to develop a plan to meet their
personal and professional development goals during the course of the year, and which will be
reviewed as part of the employee's annual evaluation. Only time spent in FADL-approved

20




professional development activities will be counted as work time.

4, Professional development funds

FADL will offer a minimum of $500 per full-time position to cover the costs of FADL-approved
professional development activities initiated by the employee. Travel, per diem, and lodging
expenses are included in the aforementioned costs.

Additional money may be spent on employee professional development at the discretion, of

FADL. The remaining balance of this benefit does not roll over from one year to the nexf//To be

eligible to receive this benefit, employees must be beyond their probationary period, 2 a B, A

4

FADL will offer funds to cover FADL-approved professional development actl?//tl ’by

department. Each department (Adult Services, Youth Services, and Cncula//ﬁ%n /Wﬂ(be
budgeted an additional $1000. / W, ’”/

%/

/)//// %, //////’7////
FADL also plans periodic staff in-services which benefit all emplq/yees

// %4%///////

\
\\\
\\\\

&
\\\
\\\\

\\\\

./"{@7
4. Memberships in Professional Organizations %f/ %/// w4
Librarians and Technical Services Specialists may cho@ ¢'tg opt-in for memberships with ALA,
W,

\
a@

MLA, or PLA. At FADL’s discretion, Circulation C;clks %d/Pages may choose to opt-in for
memberships with ALA, MLA, or PLA.The ///st of these/m%mbelshlps will be covered by
//?/”;/?/7/// ////'7///

FADL for the length of each individual’s employmen ’

\\\

e

/Z’ RTICLE 20
ACCESS,,/@ PERSONNEL FILE

FADL shall maintain per sonnel@ cmds which include an employee's application, cover letter,
resume, pre employmen }materlal,and all pertinent documents concerning the employee's
employment recmd; jOb deso tiption, compiled performance evaluations and documentation of
disciplinary actioy / r/c)langés in employment status.

@,

b,

iy,
An employ,ee h/a ”the right of access to their official personnel file. An employee has a right to

Iespond 1n/w11t1ng to any material in the employee's official personnel file. The employee shall

lecelve a copy/éf any material related to discipline or job performance that is put into their

52

official personnel file. The employee has the right to have their written response to any material
related to discipline or job performance in the official personnel file attached to the material.

S
@\\\\\\

CI)

\\

\\\\

ARTICLE 21
EXPENSES

21




The employer shall pay all legitimate expenses of the employee incurred in the service of the
library. The employer shall furnish all materials and equipment necessary for the work done in
their service.

An employee who uses their car in the service of the employer shall be compensated per mile at
the standard mileage rate established by the Internal Revenue Service. Mileage compensation
excludes commuting to and from work. When traveling for work or professional development
purposes, round trip mileage will be calculated FADL as the starting and end point, 222, ENlne

e
Mile Road, Ferndale, Michigan 48220. //f/

/
//f/

Employees traveling more than 100 miles round trip are eligible to be reimburse /d fpt up to $60
per day for meals, excluding alcohol. Meals for someone other than the employee j a paltner
or spouse traveling with the employee) will not be reimbursed by FADL. If FA #determines
that an overnight stay is required, FADL will cover the costs of lodgmgA@d/g /’g

accommodations should be mutually agreed upon by FADL and tl%empioyee prior to travel.

/////////’i//////
%

SF

ARTICLE 22
OUTSIDE EMPLOY

“p,

S
\

AN
&
k@\\

Employees may hold outside jobs as long as 1f;d0@; ]

2

W

ey

5

o
B
¥ O

10t-create a conflict of interest with the
Library. It is expected that the employee will bgjav ail4blé'to work the normal hours scheduled
without interference from outside employment Beasonable schedule accommodations for

outside employment must be attempted fof//peut time employees of the Library.

7

TG
\\
‘\\ o
5\\3

k L P ARTICLE 23
HEALTH AND SAFETY

i, k iy
The Employer/shéﬁ be/ lé/SPOI]Slble for providing Employees with the resources necessary to do

their work, k //as W eli as providing for a safe work environment.

/ %/ .

// /// ///
We uncjelstand that working with the public often puts employees at risk from abuse, harassment
and mlstreatment The Library will review, evaluate, and take appropriate action to address all
reported instances of abuse, harassment, and mistreatment in connection with the performance of
their job duties.

ARTICLE 24
UNION RIGHTS

Subject to availability, permission from the Library Director, and upon reasonable request by

22




the Guild, FADL shall provide space on its premises for meetings of bargaining unit
employees at mutually agreeable times.

Upon advance request by the Guild, unit employees designated as Union representatives shall
be granted reasonable time off from their work, without loss of pay, to conduct necessary
Union business administering the contract.

Employees must obtain permission from their Supervisor and the Library Director in advance

and their absence from duty cannot interfere with library operations. No employee will‘l}/fg
/

given additional compensation for time spent in conducting Union business which is outs.1de, S

////

their scheduled workday and/or hours. ”% ///”///
P
FADL will provide bulletin board space for Guild use. . %, ///,////////

Fa %
Union officers may use the Library copy machine for Union related bu’é/ness’f’mcludmg
A,
notification of Union meetings, with the understanding all costs w1ll be: b f”’ne by the Guild, and

providing such use does not interfere with Library business. /////,/ //////////

\\\

% %
ARTICLE 25 4 %// %/
MANAGEMENT/RIGfiTs
/ ///

G, //’////// %
FADL, hereby retains and reserves unto itself all powers, rights, authority, duties, and

responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and the Constitution and statutes of

the State of Michigan and the United States, and the Bylaws of the FADL Board of Directors.
Further, all rights which ordinarily y vest /1/ afjd are exercised by employers, except as are
specifically relinquished in thls contlact re reserved to, and remain vested in FADL, including,

/////

by way of illustration and p /t y way/éf limitation, the following rights:

“//////

3

\\\\

/////

A. To manage its affatt e

P

ﬁ(;lently and economically, including the determination of
/ / T

quantity and quallty//g/)f S(;;\L/l/ces to be rendered, the control of materials, tools, and equipment to
be used, and the d;sgoﬁtlnuance of any service, materials or method of operation.

/

//
%
% 7

B.  Toitittodiige new equipment, machinery, or processes, change or eliminate existing

, e
equ/lpment//a&n mnstitute technological changes, decide on materials, supplies, equipment and
i, Dy
tobls ‘to,be puichased.
”/7/

"
4

C. To construct new facilities or to improve existing facilities.

'-h\

\\\

\

\\\;

D. To determine the size of the work force and establish work schedules.
E. To hire and lay off employees.

F. To adopt, revise and enforce reasonable working rules, policies, and regulations and to
carry out cost and general improvement programs.

23



G. To determine the qualifications and competence of employees to perform required work.

H. To discipline, suspend or discharge for just cause and to maintain discipline and
efficiency of employees.

L. To establish a general policy to provide for training programs designed to improve
employee performance, proficiency, and career advancement.

1. To hold open or eliminate a position created by a vacancy and not fill vacanmesf”@%
authorized positions once they have become vacant because of reassignment, retirement ‘%
P, N

promotion, or separation. % %

K. To determine the amount of supervision necessary on all jobs, a351gnmen}s/(3; operations

N\
/
ARTICLE 26 e N
JOINT RESPONSIBILITIES %

%////”f%

1. No Strike, No Lockout 5/7 W
A. Under no circumstances will the Union cause or au/thor“lz,;}/;or permit its members to

cause, nor will any member of the bargaining unit take alf i, any strike, sit-down, stay-in, or
slowdown or any curtailment of work or restri 1ct10n 01; productlon or interference with the
operations of the Library. In the event of a wo k//’ p%a/fé e.or ¢ other curtailment of production,
FADL shall not be required to negotiate on the’t

//% PE2
euts of the dispute which gave rise to the
4/

stoppage or curtailment until same is c/gs}//ed

% ¢
B. In the event of a work stoppage /g;;/,pthel curtailment, the Union shall immediately

s

instruct the involved employe §, e )tmg, that their conduct is in violation of the contract, that
they shall be disciplined u /”té ///d mc]udmg discharge and shall instruct all such persons to

///‘

immediately cease the (}ffé ding conduct
by 7 ///

C. FADL shall’ha e the ught to discipline, up to and including discharge, any employee

A,
who instigates, pal i) gipates in or gives leadership to any activity herein prohibited.
o
Sy

D. . FADL ’11] ot lock out any employee during the term of this Agreement.

\\\\\\\

\\\\

\\\\

\

&

ARTICLE 27
Surveillance

The Library values the privacy of both patrons and staft within the establishment. As such,
security equipment within the building shall not be misused by any person to surveil another on
the premises. Security footage shall only be accessed and viewed by management to review
video related to reported incidents.

24



ARTICLE 28
Remote Work

FADL employees may obtain advance approval to work remotely for the purposes of
professional development and online/hybrid meetings if the following conditions are met:

e Remote work requires pre-approval by the employee’s Department Head, and final
approval by the Library Director or Assistant Director. N

e Requests for remote work to attend known meetings should be submitted for aﬁ//fﬁ"rgv//z/ﬂ/ﬁo

later than the 10th of the previous month to align with the posted schedu]e// /ex%ﬂ; 6/”(‘1 est
iy /
for 2 hours of remote work on July 25th should be submitted to the Depa%apt%i{ead by
June 10th at the latest). If an opportunity arises for a meeting or plofes§10nal/
/
development, 1 week notice is required for the request. %///5%//// U
U,
%,

e Any technology set-up required on-site at FADL to accommodate rémote meeting
attendance will be the responsibility of a bargaining Llpﬁfxmémber

\

\\\\

\\\

N&

e

7y
///} ,g, 7
e Remote work is limited to 8 heurs per month fm% ch /é//ﬁ{{/loyfee.

A\

\\\

\\\\\\
x

R

K

slopment will be paid time.
fter a session of remote work.

\2\%

o N

e Only the duration of the meeting or plpfg://;/}slon@/]//g}

Commuting time will not be compensate/cl b{:fme

Yo

%

\\\\\\\

e The Library is not resp0n31ble {6t owdmg, the technology necessary to attend the

meeting or professional devel f’)}@t however, employees may request use of library
/
equipment which may; be/,pl 0</1ded on a case-by-case basis, subject to availability.

% /////

\\\\

%
////

he/ lght to cancel any work from home session at any point due to
gl g
unforeseen, schedu/lng/ oncerns.

Yy
° Remote}woﬂg/lsfnot to be requested as a replacement for sick leave and requests to work
i

27
remotelyiwith Short notice will not be approved, absent unusual circumstances.

//,,yx//// “Y,

/// Employee who perform library work remotely without approval will not be compensated
L4
Y //%//// for thatdime.

%,

0,
£
. E)\/penses for supplies normally available through the Library will not be

e The library Iesey

o
\Q
\
%\ \\

\\\;\\

reimbursed.

e The Library is not responsible for costs associated with personal setup of the
remote work location, operating costs, or any other incidental or regular costs
(e.g., utilities, phone plan, or internet costs) associated with employee’s chosen
place to work. The Library is not responsible for damage or repairs to employee-

25




owned equipment.

e The Library is not responsible for costs associated with personal setup of the
remote work location, operating costs, or any other incidental or regular costs
(e.g., utilities, phone plan, or internet costs) associated with employee’s chosen
place to work. The Library is not responsible for damage or repairs to employee-
owned equipment.

\\%\5

ARTICLE 29
’”f/
COMPLETE AGREEMENT %/ % i
///////4» %

1. Each party having had an opportunity to put forth its issues and concems aglees/thls
Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Employer ?/ng/l //;he///; l/; fion
%

regarding the subject covered in the Agreement. P Y,

\\*\
@\\

b,

G
%,

Any changes made to this Agreement must be mutually agye e}ug’on Further, neither
party is obligated to bargain any changes during the life of/thu/

¥
/f////}:

;/ ////////
ARTICLE 30,

///////%
DURATION /j%//
/////////

% /@’
/// //)Y//////////

/’w// Y

reement.

\

1. Three year agreement,

7,

This contract shall commence on the d@y of , 2023
o7

and expire on the 30th day of June/ 2/0}7 4

% //';’//f//

2. This Agreement shall l; b bindiiig, P011 the parties hereto, and shall be binding
S by merger, consolidation, or otherwise, of either

party. /
¢/ y

3. Within 60 da)';s f or//to the expiration date of this contract, the Employer or the
Guild may 1mtiate lidgotiations for a new contract to take effect on (insert exact

\\\wc

expl/atlon date) “Phe terms and conditions of this contract shall remain in effect until
. |

sucb negotlatlons are lawfully terminated. If such negotiations do not result in a new

con'n act )3[‘101 to (insert expiration date), the new contract shall be made retroactive

to (mselt expiration date).

26




N &
\\\\\\\\\\\\-x

APPENDIX A
EHIRING MINIMUMS
(TA 11.1.23)

S

S
&
&
&
s

f‘%\

$ Sl
$

Hourly wages (3% St

9
Step4 StepS Step6 Step7 Step8 Step 9  Step 10

Step 1 Step

//$f451 $25.24 $526.00 $26.78 $27.58 $28.41 8$29.26 $30.14

$18.50 $19.06 $19.63 $20.22 $20.82 S$21.45 $22.09 $22.75 823.44 824.14

I,

Librarian

Technical
Services
Specialist




$17.00 $17.51 $18.04 $18.58 $19.13 $19.71 $20.30 $20.91 $21.54 $22.18 Circulation
Specialist

$15.00 $1545 $15.91 $16.39 $16.88 $17.39 $17.91 S§18.45 519.00 S$19.57 Page

i,
&7,

7
v
e & i
//Z ////;////;;//,,;75//’
-
]
{///
. v
%, %
P,y
e G APPENDIX B
P> / / 7//?#,._
4’;/ & { DETAILED JOB DESCRIPTIONS
% 7 . . =
G, % Adult Services Librarian
Reports to; Head of Adult Services
Hours%As posted, includes evenings and weekends.

The Ferndale Area District Library is seeking a creative and enthusiastic librarian to join
our Adult Services team. The ideal candidate should have excellent interpersonal skills,
a passion for connecting people with resources, and be committed to equity and
inclusion while serving a diverse community.

Responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

¢ Assist with reference desk duties, answer reference questions, and provide readers’

28




advisory services to library patrons

» Create a welcoming environment by providing the highest level of customer service to
patrons of all ages while enforcing library policies equitably

¢ Ability to effectively use and teach current technology and information literacy to patrons
of all ages

e Serve as Person in Charge of the building, when assigned. Must be able to make
decisions in situations dealing with library security, emergency procedures, and conflict
resolution

¢ Help maintain a clean, safe facility, and a productive, organized work environment

» Maintain effective communication within the department, with other library departments
and with library management W%‘%/

¢ Cooperate as a team member with all library staff in performing any duties essentlal;to
the achievement of efficient library operations //@/

¢ Actively participate in orientation programs, in-service training, and contlg/{nﬁ edﬁcation

opportunities Fa, /////
¢ Select, order, evaluate, and weed Adult collections S, I,
¢ Plan and implement library programs: in-person, virtual, and hybUd //g/
¢ Flexibility in schedule including evenings and weekends /////,/ f/f
% )
Essential Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities: / //Z///
.
¢ Knowledge of current trends in library service to pat%on/s”’fserved by the department
e Ability to work with library patrons of varied ba/ckgrpd’ngs to maintain effective
interpersonal relationships; deal tactfully with the pubh ablllty to speak and write
effectively /// g, Vst
¢ Self-motivated and able to exercise |n|t|at|ve/amd ifdependent judgment
¢ Possess appropriate computer skills and’ have an awareness of the role of technology in
the everyday lives of library patrons
e Demonstrate skills necessary to%/éneﬁyze and interpret information, establish facts, draw
valid conclusions, and develop and |fnplement effective strategies
¢ This position may Include,outreach services. The employee is responsible for arranging

/////

transportation to arig jrén; those locations

\\\\\\\

\%\%\

\\\\\\

\\\\\\

i, %,
Education and Expen%e/ﬁ/ée/Reémrements
D,
%// '?//’/
e Master's Degree i) Library and Information Science from an ALA-accredited institution
e 1to3 years of experlence in a public library preferred, or any equivalent combination of

education;, customer service experience, and/or training that provides the required
e
know[edge sklﬂs and abilities

// &,

Physncal Demands and Working Conditions:
////

The physical demands herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform these essential job functions.

o Environment: Library environment; extensive public contact.
¢ Mobility: Sufficient mobility to work in a library setting; operate office equipment

¢ Vision: Vision sufficient to read small print, computer screens, and other printed

29



W

&
&
&
&
A\ N P
G
VN
X
m//
5%
&
W@
S
/.%/////// /
N
/4%,
M sy
N
>
//////m%/ _
A /
| N
=
///% ~
| B
////////// 5
%//
QY .
//W///,
Q
£
@
>
@
i
c
o
p
o
&
e
,, S
A
Sy ./W
O //////
%/ .,/
N ﬂ//////
o o,
N ///

do
cuments

FL
SA status

30



Youth Services Librarian

Reports to: Head of Youth Services
Hours: As posted, includes evenings and weekends.

The Ferndale Area District Library is seeking a creative and enthusiastic team player
to join our Youth Services department. The ideal candidate
should be passionate about children's literature and b
\ ) N : ) 4
programming, eager to build relationships with public schools "y
and community organizations, and committed to equity and%/% 4
. . . . . . W
inclusion while serving a diverse community. /,///@ %

.

Responsibhilities include, but are not limited to: ///% ////////

. Assist with youth desk duties and provide readerj?s”’/»a‘,dvis/”f’i;ay to children
and families Y,

W
. A,
Plan and conduct regular storytimes and eg}F litera

v 't%ra’ey activities
. , . % Z . .
Create and implement a variety of cree}}y/// firog;/ammlng for children 0-17

e nr
dio

Select, order, evaluate, and weed juve/n}e/a}n r young adult collections

Provide community ocutreach and ‘l;;//ild”{/e/latfonshlps with public schools

R

and early childhood cenfcers //,% ’@% | N

Supervise patron behavior an% quj/;aBIy enforce Library policies

Help maintain a clean,{gé'fg,}j/gjc/ffility;’/ and a productive, organized work
environment //% -~

. Cooperate as a team meipber with all library staff in performing any
duti_es esseqtigl,}to”@/t}e;\ a_ch"i’evgment of efficignt Iibrqry opgrgtions

. Actively pamg‘lpga}eﬁnéorlentatlon programs, in-service training, and

S

. . KA ’/’y,, -y
continuing ecﬁ,,;/cé/{ln//opportumtles

. Serve’%,/;/"e_;;;;é;/n in Charge of the building, when assigned. Must be able
’?'//,, 2 ¢ o . .’// . . . . - . -
to make @e,gislons in situations dealing with library security, emergency

prog d%fes/and conflict resolution

Ié;e//mbg],,t/y in schedule including evenings and weekends

b,
“

Ty
,
wle

swledge, Skills, and Abilities:

o

i,

&

g

P2

Essential KNt

ve . .
égg’g//{fﬁ current trends in library service to patrons served by the department

4 e Ability to work with library patrons of varied backgrounds to maintain

H, effective interpersonal relationships; deal tactfully with the public;

ability to speak and write effectively

¢ Self-motivated and able to exercise initiative and independent judgment

e Possess appropriate computer skills and have an awareness of the role of technology in
the everyday lives of library patrons

e Demonstrate skills necessary to analyze and interpret information, establish facts, draw
valid conclusicns, and develop and implement effective strategies

. This position may include outreach services to local schools and

organizations. The employee is responsible for arranging transportation to
and from those locations

¥

31




Education and Experience Requirements:

e Master’s Degree in Library and Information Science from an ALA-accredited institution
e 1-2 years experience working with children in a iibrary setting (preferred),
or any equivalent combination of education, customer service experience,
and/or training that provides the required knowledge, skills, and abilities

- ] gw . /
Physical Demands and Working Conditions: ///% %///
The physical demands herein are representative of those that must be mey"%n ’/e’-",;)/"lployee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accé% jdations

NPT . . Aol L .
may be made fc enable individuals with disahilities to perform these es/é//én)éﬁ?jb functions.
. Environment: Library environment; extens%é/u%llc%ontact.
. Mobility: Sufficient mobility to work in ag]ibr% “Setting; operate office
. 0  ;
equipment ///////&/j///,/////
° Vision: Vision sufficient to read sr)/way%/p%,tg computer screens and other
printed documents %g \ w4
7, W
FLSA status: Non-exempt %/

7

Y
@.
r

\
\i‘t\\\\\\\\

B
-
Sy

-\\\\\
s
AN

32




Technical Services Specialist

Reports to: Head of Circulation
Hours: As peosted, includes evenings and weekends.

The Ferndale Area District Library is seeking a reliable and enthusiastic Technical Services
Specialist to join our team. The ideal candidate should be exceptionally self-motivated, highly
organized, have excellent attention to detail, and a passion for helping their colleagues;%)cceed.

N
(

~ |
Process new library materials, from delivery/unpacking to shelf- rea}wst%/
Work collaboratively with librarians to ensure accurate timely proge ssmg/of new and high
demand materials % %
Regular material record and label maintenance, book repa}lr////, %
Provide original and copy cataloging for library's col!ectlons Z

/
Troubleshoot in-depth or complicated patron Inqu|ne T /{3 oy %

D
\i\
\;\\,\\\

Job Responsibilities include:

%,
5%

\

unt issues

Occasional Circulation Specialist duties as needed» mc///////dmg but not limited to shifts on
the circulation desk and ILL processing e

Train and mentor Circulation Specialists and other staff as needed

Ability to exercise judgment in the performance of tasks

Help maintain a clean, safe facility, and a P ductr% organized work environment

Keep statistics, file/process invoices and/packlng lists, use current technologies for
/
communication /?

e Assist in the development andflm létentation of library policies and procedures,

maintains knowledge of state,/of/the/art technologies, and seeks opportunities for
professional growth, a/nd deveJ/@pment
Dt Y
Order supplies as neeged////
Clerical work aS/a//S/’Slgn//éd’
Other duties may l‘:ﬁ%%ssngned
&

/

y ////
//// 4

* & ¢ @
‘&ﬁ

® & & ®
&
\\\,§
\\

\

\\

\

‘\
\\%\‘

L

En;/iys;sm and commitment o public service excellence

/og,, Strong/attentlon to detail
/Ablllty to maintain effective interperscnal relationships with library patrons and deal
tactfully with the public; ability to speak and write effectively; cooperate effectively with
co-workers

s Be self-motivated and able to exercise initiative and independent judgment; possess

appropriate computer skills

Desired Qualltles mclude
P vy

Preferred Skills include:
e 2+ years previous cataloging and circulation experience
e Experience with Google App Suite (Drive, Gmail, Docs, Calendar)

33



e Experience with retail computer systems, cash registers, office equipment

Education and Experience Requirements:
o Asscciates Degree or equivalent college experience (2+ years), or equivalent
combination of relevant education and experience

Physical demands and working conditions:

The physical demands herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform these essential job functions.

Environment: Library environment; extensive public contact.
Mobility: Sufficient mobility to work in a library setting; operate office equipment.

Vision: Vision sufficient to read small print, computer screens, and other printed documents.

yr

)
D

<88

34




Circulation Specialist

Reports to: Head of Circulation
Hours: As posted, includes evenings and weekends.

The Ferndale Area District Library is seeking a creative and enthusiastic Circulation Specialist to
join our team. The ideal candidate should have excellent interpersonal skills, a passionifor
customer service, and be committed to equity and inclusion while serving a diverse com%ymt

//@/////’

Be the first to see all of the new releases in books, movies, and music! Applicants Wl/b no
P, B
library customer service experience are encouraged to apply. / ) 4 Uy
7

"y
//f’%/f/////////

-
S Py,
Job Responsibilities include: &% ///@ g

//////////%
/ b

@\\

\

e Checking infout of library materials /
Processing interlibrary loan materials and deliveries / “By //”//////
Answering patron queries in person and via telephone//’lrpludmg creating and modifying

library patron records, addressing patron recog |s/s es, and renewing items

e Ability to exercise judgment in the performan/é/e %’f }a///ék

Assisting patrons in operating machlnes////;uch/@;; photocopzers fax, scanners, and
computers ////////////// ///
Aiding patrons in the retrieval of holds |
o Assist in the training of other cyculation 5nd library staff
Issuing library cards; respon;,lble or/accuracy in library patron records; maintaining

2

strict confidentiality of operatlons -afd records as dictated by the MI Library Privacy Act.
Provides friendly agd&heiﬁ’ful,égbhc service to Library patrons of all ages

Duties may include ¢ cash handllng and searching for missing library materials

Help maintain a c}ean safe facility, and a productive, organized work environment

Other duties, conﬁ/g/)érable level of difficulty and responsibility as required

///f//;

/%

7
Uy

/

///, ’Z//

Y
Desired Qualltles mclude

_/
./

\.

* & & o
\\\

/ EnthUSIasm and commitment to public service excellence
Strc/)ﬁg;attentlon to detail
/’Ablllty to remain calm in high traffic, fast-paced environment
. Ablllty to maintain effective interpersonal relationships with library patrons and deal
tactfully with the public; ability to speak and write effectively, cooperate effectively with
co-workers
¢ Be self-motivated and able to exercise initiative and independent judgment; possess

appropriate computer skills

Preferred Skills include:
e Previous customer service experience (retail, hospitality, library)

35




e Experience with Google App Suite (Drive, Gmail, Docs, Calendar)
¢ Experience with retail computer systems, cash registers, office equipment

Education and Experience Requirements:
e High School diploma/GED plus six months of related experience and training which
provides the required knowledge, skills & abilities.

Physical demands and working conditions:

The physical demands herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform these essential job functions.

Environment: Library environment; extensive public contact.
Mobility: Sufficient mobility to work in a library setting; operate office equipment.

Vision: Vision sufficient to read small print, computer screens, and other printed documents.

7 H g

. i

o

K

~
B

r
&

.

W

A, /// / 7
% ' »
¥
4/
!
>
) Tt
G v
7 Wy
o
%
i 7
7 K

/4//////////,/

77
T | / 4
// %/ &
% .////‘//

//,’;-.
%,
%

&

36




Page

Reports to: Assistant Director
Hours: As posted, includes evenings and weekends.

Job Responsibilities include:

e Checks shelves for accuracy and re-shelves misplaced items. Maintains she@e/ d |I,//p ry
organization and appearance. Corrects shelving errors as discovered. ,&/// Uy,

e Assists in closing of the Library. / % v
Help maintain a clean, safe facility, and a productive, organized work en %

Other duties as assigned /////
o4

e Sorts, shelves, and shifts materials (books, DVDs, etc.) in a timely manner. %
n
%

\\\\'\\\\

//////
%

e
L 2

Essential Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities

//////////////,%///

o Must be able to arrange library materials alphabetl,caljy/and numerically, according to
specific criteria. Able tc work independently and be self dn(ected in completing tasks.

.«;;

¢ Ability to communicate effectively verbally aryi V|a emall with coworkers regarding work
issues: including shelving problems, p/atron behawor and scheduling. Must have basic
i %
knowledge or ability to learn Google Su///t i Vit //f

% T
¢ Able to adapt to changes in library Iayo//il : iab/é//llng and procedure.

/////////////
7
f///////

Physical Demands and Working Gondltlons
g2 ////////////J/’;

The physical demands herem are/representanve of those that must be met by an employee to

successfully perform the/essergtr Tunctions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be

made to enable mdlwdg’/é!s%’wth ‘disabilities to perform these essential job functions.

L W
G,

/4
Environment: /L/lb/;ary/y/c/;/nwronment extensive public contact.

—
\CD
\\.\\

\

/’

&
\\,\ﬁ\i\\

Mobility: us; be e,a ble to perform frequent lifting and carrying of library materials, pushing and
pulhng book carts. Frequent stooping and reaching to shelve books on bottom and up to top
she of I|bra/ry/shelv1ng areas (stacks), which will require use of portable library stools. Lift up to
25 pounds and push up to 40 pounds.

///
Vision: Must be able to read labels in small print and library signage to ensure accurate
shelving. Must be able to read a computer screen to communicate with colleagues.

37




FERNDALE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY

SIGNATURES
Signature

NEWSPAPER GUILD OF DETROIT

Signature

N
S
p

W
/,W////'
N //////

& ¢
%/&/&/////
4

L
8N &
$ &
&
B ﬂ,//,w,/
Sy
RS % 3
N
$
: Y
R &N
/%
A g
E S R}
$ SF &
3 o S
Yem® &
3 2 A
[T
= 2 = =& p
. ] . //W S —
= = 1 e
= = ) [ f
& &
.
/////// ,./.M%,N//M/
<R
,,7////, //
&S
S
¥ & s
ot e @
D & N
&
= =
= =
z @ z.
3 £ |3
Nt © -] N o
= = 5 = =
LS - - ._w.Hv - - -
A = o e B

38



h[: l)

MR

New Items Added
Adult Books: 265
CDs: 11
DVDs/Blu-rays: 124
Audiobooks: 23
Children’s Books: 159
Teen Books: 46
Magazines: 83
Puzzles/Board Games:14
Video Games: 25
Library of Things: 1
Total: 815

Overdrive Advantage Titles

added: 49

Library Usage

Library Visits: 8,703
Home Delivery: 2
New Users Added: 147

Public Computer Sessions: 1,059

Web Sessions: 10,037
Page views: 154,957

Total questions/requests
Reference desk: 1,474
Youth desk: 454
Circulation desk: 916

Circulation by Media Type

Ferndale Sg

CTE f) m) i) ;f\
I ) ” ) i li\

t") \Q\d \‘l

A
\

November 2023 Statistics

Library Revenue from Service
Desks Total Programs Offered: 42
Total Program Attendance: 878

Total earnings (does not include
Friends): $744.07

Fees: $99.00

Fax: $60.00

Ref Desk — Misc.: $395.02
Computer Passes: $81.00
Printing & Copier: $0.75
Lost Items: SO
Non-Resident Cards: $100
Board Fundraising: SO
Donations: $3.30
Earbuds/Flash drives: $5.00

Total Friends earnings
Book Store: $566.59

Shirts and Bags: $49.60
Amazon Sales: $247.14

Print Books 12,152 Total Library Checkouts: 16,315
Audio Music 631 Total Digital Checkouts: 5,319
\Audiobooks 713 Iltems Loaned through ILL: 1,904
Visual Media 2,184 Items Loaned through MelCat: 118
Magazine 141 Items Borrowed through ILL: 2,886
Board games/puzzles 340 Items Borrowed through MelCat: 62
Video games 25

Library of Things 48

Other 37




Digital Circulation

Overdrive:

Total Downloads: 3,426
Total Users: 827
New Users: 70
Kanopy:

Video Plays: 873

Total User Accounts: 242

Social Media — November
Insights from our social media...

Podcast — 315 downloads

Main Facebook Page

New Page Likes: 16

New Page Followers: 19

Post Engagement: 18,000

Overall Reach: 21,500
Page/Profile Visits: 1,100

Video Content {minutes viewed): 45
Post Reach: 550,000

Instagram:

Post engagement: 4,300

Story Reach: 910

Overall Reach: 10,800

Interactions: 1,600

IG Profile Visits: 350

New Followers/Growth Rate: 39 (1.1%)
Post Reach: 3,000

Youth Services Facebook Page
New Page Likes: 6

New Page Followers: 6

Post Engagement: 185
Video Minutes Viewed: 28
Page/Profile Visits: 245
Post Reach: 1,000

Overall Reach: 3,600

Hoopla:

Total Downloads: 1,020
Total Users: 332
New Users: 30

Tik Tok

Followers: 5,241

Total Likes: 200,210
Monthly Video Views: 42,000

Monthly Likes: 2,900
Monthly Profile Visits: 250
Monthly Shares: 80

Teen Instagram:
Post Engagement: 250
Overall Reach: 900
Interactions: 75
Profile Visits: 5
New Followers/Growth Rate: 3 (0.10%)
Post Reach: 115
Story Reach: 62




November 2023 Adult Programs

Date |Program Gl _ ~ |inPerson [reens/kids [zoom | Total |
11/2/2023 History of Pewabic Pottery 25 25
11/4/2023 Garden Club Pheasants Documentary 45 45
11/5/2023 Motor Om Yoga 15 15
11/8/2023 Sci Fi Book Club 16 6 22
11/9/2023 Lyndsay C. Green 24 24

11/10/2023 First Stop Friday: 29 29
11/13/2023 Adult Zine Program 14 14
11/14/2023 Film Club 20 20
11/21/2023 Graphic Novel Book Club 5 5
11/28/2023 Ferndale Project Book Club 40 40
11/30/2023 Art Reception: India Solomon 27 27

Total 11 Programs 260 6 266

November 2023 Youth Programs

11/1/2023 November Take-home kit (Paper turkey)

11/1/2023 Fall Scavenger Hunt (11/1-11/4) 3 3
11/1/2023 Puppet Pen Pal Program (11/1-11/4) 4 4
11/1/2023 Family Storytime 1 1 2
11/1/2023 LEBC 1 1
11/2/2023 Outreach: Drayton 46 46
11/2/2023 Middle Grade Tabletop RPG 0
11/3/2023 Baby Storytime 7 7 14
11/5/2023 Fall Scavenger Hunt (11/5-11/11) 15 15
11/5/2023 Puppet Pen Pal Program (11/5-11/11) 2 2
11/8/2023 Qutreach: FECC Preschool Storytime 20 130 150
11/8/2023 Family Storytime 11 10 21
11/8/2023 UEBC 1 1
11/9/2023 Outreach: Drayton 46 46
11/9/2023 Middle School Board Game Club 4 4
11/10/2023 Baby Storytime 13 10 23
11/12/2023 Fall Scavenger Hunt (11/12-11-18) 11 11
11/13/2023 Zine Program 4 10 14
11/14/2023 Sensory-Friendly Storytime 1 2 3
11/15/2023 Family Storytime 11 14 25
11/156/2023 Pokemon Club 19 19
11/16/2023 Qutreach: Drayton 46 46
11/16/2023 Middle Grade Tabletop RPG 5 5
11/17/2023 Baby Storytime 13 11 24
11/19/2023 Fall Scavenger Hunt (11/19-11/22) 4 4
11/21/2023 Outreach: Drayton 46 46
11/26/2023 Fall Scavenger Hunt (11/26-11/30) 0
11/28/2023 Outreach: Scocial Justice and Snacks at FHS 14 14
11/28/2023 Reading Rainbow 3 3
11/28/2023 Rainbow Caregiver Club 0 0
11/30/2023 Outreach: Drayton 46 46

Total 24 Programs / 7 Outreach 81 531 612



“;Hi x

.\ ‘I\‘

December 2023 Events at FADL

222 E Nine Mile Rd. Ferndale, MI 48220

248.546.2504

fadl.org

Hours:
Monday — Thursday: 10am - 8pm
Friday: 10am - 6pm
Saturday — Sunday: 12pm - 5pm

Library is closed Sunday, December 24th through Tuesday, December 26th,
and Sunday, December 31st through Tuesday, January 2nd

In-Person Weekly Early Literacy Programming

Fridays, the 1st & 8th Baby Storytime 10:30am (Under age 2)
First come, first served. Learn more at fadl.org/baby

Wednesdays, the 6th, 13th, & 20th Family Storytime 10:30am (Families with kids ages 2-6)
First come, first served. Learn more at fadl.org/family

Tuesdays Sensory-friendly Storytime will return January 2024

Email Everett@fadl.org with questions



Adult Programming

For more information about any of these programs, please visit www.fadl.org

Library is closed Sunday, December 24th through Tuesday, December 26th,
and Sunday, December 31st through Tuesday, January 2nd

Friday, December 1

Sunday, December 3

Tuesday, December 5

Thursday, December 7

Monday, December 11

Wednesday, December 13

Thursday, December 14

Tuesday, December 19

Thursday, December 28

First Stop Friday: Libby DeCamp Doors at 7:30pm

Free live music, no registration required. Libby DeCamp is a singer,
songwriter, and multi-instrumentalist based in Detroit.

More information at www.fadl.org/fsf

Motor Om Yoga 12:00pm
In the Program Room
Register at www.fadl.org/yoga

Ferndale Library Film Club 7:00pm
Discussing Kiss Kiss Bang Bang starring Robert Downey Jr.,
Val Kilmer, and Michelle Monaghan. Register at www.fadl.org/film-club

Costumed Model Drawing (Classic Literature-themed) 6:30pm

AlL skill levels, ages 18+ are welcome to attend. A model on a stage

will pose while attendees can draw/sketch, with all supplies provided.
Co-hosted and facilitated by Yeah Haus animator/producer Michelle Ouellette.
More information at www.fadl.org/draw

Holiday Movie Trivia at 215 West 7:00pm

Join us for a fun movie trivia night, with brain-teasing questions about
modern/classic/beloved & cult "holiday" films, brought to you by the staff
of the Ferndale Library! Prizes awarded to the top 3 teams.

More information at www.fadl.org/trivia

Science Fiction Book Club (Hybrid) 6:30pm
Discussing The Actual Star by Monica Byrne
Register at www.fadl.org/sfhc

Library Board Meeting 6:30pm
More information at www.fadl.org/library-board-directors-meeting

Graphic Novel Book Club at Drifter Coffee 6:30pm

Offsite: hosted by Drifter Coffee, 770 Woodward Heights

Ages 18+ are welcome to attend. Discussing Saga Vol. 1 by Brian K. Vaughan
Register at www.fadl.org/gnbc

Ferndale Project Book Club 6:30pm

Offsite: hosted by Ferndale Project, 567 Livernois
Discussing Jennifer McMahon's Winter People
More information at www.fadl.org/fpbc



Children and Teen Programming

For more information about any of these programs, please visit www.fadl.org

Library is closed Sunday, December 24th through Tuesday, December 26th,
and Sunday, December 31st through Tuesday, January 2nd

Wednesday, December 1 Lower Elementary Book Club (Hybrid) 6:30pm
Grades K-2, reading Finding My Dance by Ria Thundercloud
Sign up at www.fadl.org/lebc

Thursday, December 7 Middle Grade Tabletop RPG Group 6:00pm
Explore tabletop games similar to Dungeons & Dragons
Grades 6-8, sign up at www.fadl.org/rpg

Wednesday December 13 Upper Elementary Book Club (Hybrid) 6:30pm
Grades 3-5, discussing The Magical Reality of Nadia by Bassem Youssef
and Catherine Daly. Sign up at www.fadl.org/uebc

Thursday, December 14 Reading Riot for UHS Students 3:00pm
UHS Students are invited to read a book within the horror/thriller
genre and join us for snacks to talk about what we read.
Ages 7-12, sign up at www.fadl.org/uhs

Thursday, December 14 Middle School Board Game Club 6:00pm
Learn how to play awesome board games!
Grades 6-8, sign up at www.fadl.org/mshg

Wednesday, December 20 Pokémon Club 6:00pm
Ages 7-12, sign up at www.fadl.org/pokemon




Library is closed Sunday 12/24 through Tuesday 12/26,
and Sunday 12/31 through Tuesday 1/2/2024




Balance Sheet
Ferndale Area District Library

As of October 31, 2023
OCT 31, 2023
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Projects Account 557,206.00
001,000 - General Account ©1,839,949.66

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Equity

2,397,155.66
2,397,155.66

2,397,155.66

Equity

320.000 - Retained Earnings

Current Year Earnings

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Balance Sheet Ferndale Area District Library Dec 12, 2023

935,162.88

1,461,992.78
2,397,155.66

2,397,155.66

Page 1of1




Income Statement (Profit and Loss)

Ferndale Area District Library
For the month ended October 31, 2023

OCT 2923 SEP 2023 AUG 2023 JUL 2023 YEAR TO DATE
Income
404.000 - Voted Property Taxes 26,846.40 94 912 06 1,721,434.43 217,123.68 2,060,316.57
404.001-Voted Property Taxes -Personal 4130424 - - . 4131424
567.000-Library StateAid e 979828 - 9,708.28
607.000 - Fees for Services N - ) 12500 2500 175.00
627. 000 Chargeif;riéervlces 7 i - 8:995797 - 7395.42 708.797877 V 605.08 2,606.07
645.000 - Print Sales & t;)ples o 138915 7.8-5 889.55 707.60 2,994.15
660 000 Flnes & Forfettures 145.59 48.2“5 115.79 89.19 398;:85
675 001 |nd|V|dual Donations & Honoranums . 130.98 1E3 . -9.00 101 52 o 243_1;
675.002 - Contrlbutlonsfrom lerary Frlends - . o - - _- - -- o l 000 00. o E OUEJE
§93.000 - Sale of Property B 1033 - 9000 4298 236.32
695.000 - Miscellaneous Income _ o I 440 240
Total Income R - - - 7:2) 889 29_ o .5.1.5.;390.21 1,73.3,171..-03_ o 219,696_4_5 5,119,146.98
Gross Profit 70,889.29 95,390.21  1,733,171.03 219,696.45  2,119,146.98
Qperating Expenses
706.001 - Salaries - Full-time 49,738.96 50,011.62 47,359.92 35,874.40 182,984.90
706.002 - Salaries - Part-tima 13,490.13 13, 01? 79 10,987.67 9,434.70 46,930.29
706 003 - Salaries - Subs 1,694 14 1, 542 60 1 324.20 1,445.40 6,06%?3;
715,001 - Social Security - Employee ’ 256693 517039 4,820.78 378072 16,338.82
715.002 - Social Security - Employer 256691 517037 482072 378062 1633862
716,100 Health Insurance o 7eam 797474 7,974.74 16,518.73 40,442.95
717.000 - Life Insu rance EE 648.01 648.01 648.01 648.01 2 592 04
71-8 000 PenSIC-)r; ICMA RC 4(}1 S 6,114.95 . 4.0(:.];"3 ESE 4,0.62_.7-4“ - . 3 948.54 B 18 131.89
720001-Medicare-Employee 60030 120025 112142 88420 382017
720.002 - Medicare -Employer I 60034 i',_zoé.iim ' 1,127.43 884.19 3,821.17
721 001 Federal Income Tax- Employee 3,b31.44 6,105.69 6,031.72 4,816.06 19,984.51
722.001 - MI lncome Tax - Employee 1,475.15 2,961.41 2,783.42 2,160.81 93807779
77227.062:M7I7Uniemployment—Empluyer 7 1,98000 - - . 7 1,58&&){)
723.001-Local Income Tax-Fmployee 4891 9782 98 768 32141
T25.000 - Workers Comh'erimsatiﬁrnw L o - 98500 985.00
740.000 - Operating Supplies 2,829.59 3,362.33 3,764.19 2,683.22 12,639.33
742 000 8ooks o 7,119.95 7,514, 58. 6,158.97 1,i81.68 21,975.18
743.000-Periodicals 91891 13600 39003 - 142700
745.000-Aud|o-V|sual, Video - - - 2 294, 87 o 2015 30 1,81744 - .1-,.64.4.;15” 7,%7'2'.05
746 000 Other Non Bnak 7,779.95 11,317.66 12,879.30 2,620.52 34 597 83
748. 000 Materlals Processmg Supplles - i,ilS.T9 367.69 473.00 224 92 2 184 46
775.000 - Repair & Maintenance - o 332177 - 4435;5 9?500 7 610.95 7 5,351.57

Income Statement (Profit and Loss) Ferndale Area District Library Cec 12,2023

Pagelof2




Income Statement {Profit and Loss)

0CT 2023 SEP 2023 AUG 2023 JUL 2023 YEAR TO DATE

803.000- The Library Network - 19,456.28 972.80 956462 231144 32,305.14
818 000 - Contractuaijséwlces o o 17,577.97 3,555.9? 6,8195_ 8,366.32 55_25985
853.000 - P;'I(;l‘l;,}cic;hmunlcatlonsi o 537 57 537.53 - 53?;-57 - 537. 3? 2_15(_] -04
885. 000 Sﬁeélélilsiriograms - l 420 13 2,093.97 1 268.10 o 4 559 20 - _9_2;4140
900.000 - Prlntlng&Publlshlng 7 361.29 5,808.-92" o _225;8_ - ;3_3E9_9
914.000- Liability tnsurance (1,320.00) o ispzo0 14593.00
920 000 Utilities B 2,_2;555 . 2 811: 02__ 3 OTG 91 2,883.55 - li 03941
931.000 - Facilities Maintenance 25080 311050 541202 45500 11,488.02
iiiloab Eqmpment Rental Alioc.- General Fund Motar _62;36_ -";_1_0;(?_ T 609.36 B ;09_3[; -“__--_-2,753_68
956,000 - Miscellaneous 3200 87100 7335 5650 56175
a57. 000 Training/Education N . o . 6,64535 o 15&5706' o 616,91 61.70 o 8,389.97
QESS 000 Me.:;’r:b;;lps & Dues; - 367.76 85.00 - 1,347.67 1,800.43
970.000- Eoiuﬁy l;elmquent Tax C;na;ge’ll;aicl 950.00 - - - 950.00
9??.000- Capital Outlay 17,996. 50. 5,100.00 . 9, 420 52_ - 1 100 00 33 (;IE_S82
996.000- Interest Expense Caatseo - s
Total Operating Expenses 21512545 150,450.28  159,168.95  132,408.52  657,154.20
Operating Income (144,236.16} {55,060.07)  1,574,002,08 87,286.93  1,461,992.78
Net income (144,236.16} {55,060.07) 1,574,002.08 87,286.93 1,461,992.78

Income Statement (Profit and Loss)

Ferndale Area District Library

Dec 12,2023

Page2of2




FY 2024 Budget
Ferndale Area District Library

FY 2024 FY 2024
YTD Budget

General Fund - 101 Octobher 2023 as of 10/31/2023
Revenue
101-271-404.000 - Voled Property Taxes $ 26,846.40 $ 2,060,316.57 $ 2,384,162.00
101-271-404.001 - Voted Property Taxes - Personal $ 41,374.24 $ 41,374.24 $ 38,500.00
101-271-567.000 - Library State Aid $ - $ 9,798.28 $ 19,323.00
101-271-581.000 - Grants $ - 3 - 3 -
101-271-607.000 - Fees for Services $ - $ 175.00 $ 600.00
101-271-627.000 - Charge for Services $ 889.59 $ 2,606.07 $ 9,000.00
101-271-645.000 - Print Sales & Copies 3 1,389.15 $ 2,994.15 $ 1,500.00
101-271-656.000 - Other Fees & Fines $ - $ - $ 26,000.00
101-271-660.000 - Fines & Forfeitures 3 145.59 3 398.82 $ 1,000.00
101-271-675.001 - Individual Donations & Honorariums 3 130.98 $ 243.13 $ 2,500.00
101-271-675.002 - Contributions from Library Friends 3 - $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00
101-271-675.003 - Special Event Proceeds $ - $ - 3 -
101-271-675.004 - Library Board Fundraising $ - $ - 5 100.00
101-271-693.000 - Sale of Property 3 103.34 $ 236.32 5 1,500.00
101-271-695.000 - Miscellaneous Income % - 3 4.40 $ 5,500.00
101-271-699.401 - Contributions from Capital Fund $ - 3 - $ -
Total Revenue $ 70,889.29 $ 2,119,146.98 $ 2,490,685.00

FY 2024 FY 2024

YTD Budget

General Fund - 101 October 2023 as of 10/31/2023
Expenses
101-271-706.001 - Salaries - Full-time $ (49,738.96) 3 (182,984.90) $ (694,550.00)
101-271-706.002 - Salaries - Part-time $ {13,480.13}) $ {46,930.29) 3 (177,908.00)
101-271-706.003 - Salaries - Subs $ (1,694.14) $ (6,006.34) $ (9,700.00)
101-271-715.001 - Social Security - Employee $ (2,566.93) $ {16,338.82) $ (68,301.00)
101-271-715.002 - Social Security - Employer $ (2,566.91) $ {16,338.62) $ (68,301.00)
101-271-716.100 - Health Insurance $ (7,974.74) $ {40,442.95) $ (120,000.00)
101-271-717.000 - Life Insurance - EE $ (648.01) $ {2,592.04) $ {7,500.00)
101-271-718.000 - Pension- ICMA-RC 401 $ (6,114.95) $ (18,131.89) $ (48,000.00)
101-271-720.001 - Medicare - Employee $ (600.30) $ {3,821.17) $ (15,072.00)
101-271-720.002 - Medicare - Employer $ (600.34) $ {3,821.17) $ (15,072.00}
101-271-721.001 - Federal Income Tax - Employee $ (3,031.44) $ (19,984.91) $ (100,132.00}
101-271-722.001 - Ml Income Tax - Employee $ (1,475.15) $ {9,380.79) $ (43,380.00)
101-271-722.002 - Ml Unemployment - Employer $ {(1,980.00) $ {1,980.00) $ -
101-271-723.001 - Local Income Tax - Employee 3 {48.91) $ {321.41) $ {1,200.00)
101-271-725.000 - Workers Compensation $ - 3 (985.00) $ {2,000.00)
101-271-730.000 - Postage, Mail Processing $ - $ - $ {8,000.00)
101-271-740.000 - Operating Supplies $ (2,829.59) $ (12,639.33) $ {36,000.00)
101-271-742.000 - Books $ (7,119.95) $ (21,975.18) $ {95,600.00)
101-271-743.000 - Periodicals $ (910.97) $ (1,427.00) $ {10,000.00)
101-271-745.000 - Audio-Visual, Video $ (2,294.87) $ (7,772.09) $ (33,495.00)
101-271-746.000 - Other Non Book $ (7,779.95) b (34,597.83) $ {95,100.00)
101-271-748.000 - Materials Processing Supplies $ (1,118.79) $ (2,184.40) $ (8,400.00)

T
i
i
!




FY 2024 FY 2024
YID Budget

General Fund - 101 October 2023 as of 10/31/2023
101-271-775.000 - Repair & Maintenance $ (3.321.77) $ {(5,351.57) $ (32,000.00)
101-271-802.000 - Audit/Actuariai Fees 5 - ) - $ {5,100.00)
101-271-803.000 - The Library Network $ {19,456.28) $ (32,305.14) $ (55,000.00)
101-271-818.000 - Contractual Services $ {17,577 .97) § (36,299.85) $ (80,000.00)
101-271-853.000 - Phone/Communications 5 (537.57) $ {(2,150.04) $ {7.,000.00}
101-271-885.000 - Special Programs 3 (1,420.13) g (9,341.40) $ (35,000.00)
101-271-900.000 - Printing & Publishing $ (361.29) $ (8,381.99) $ (24,000.00}
101-271-914.000 - Liability Insurance $ 1,320.00 $ (14,593.00) 3 (15,000.00}
101-271-920.000 - Utilities $ (2,273.93) $ {11,039.41) $ (44,000.00}
101-271-931.000 - Facilities Maintenance $ (2,510.50) $ (11,488.02) $ (40,000.00)
101-271-943.000 - Equipment Rental $ (624.36) $ (2,753.68) $ {7.600.00)
101-271-956.000 - Miscellaneous $ (342.00) $ (561.75) $ {1,500,00)
101-271-957.000 - Training/Education 3 (6,645.36) 5 (8,389.97}) $ (22,000.00)
101-271-958.000 - Memberships & Dues $ (367.76) $ (1,800.43) $ {7,000.00)
101-271-960.000 - County Delinquent Tax Chargeback $ (950.00) $ (950.00) $ -
101-271-965.401 - Contributions to Capital Fund $ - $ - $ -
101-271-877.000 - Capital Outlay 5 {17,996.50} $ (33,616.82) $ (50,000.00)
101-271-992.000 - Debt Sve- Principal $ - 5 - $ (345,000.00)
101-271-994.000 - Interest Expense $ (27,475.00} $ (27,475.00) $ (54,950.00)
Total Expenses $ (215,125.45) $ (657,154.20) $ (2,482,861.00)
Net Income / {Loss): $ (144,236.16) $ 1,461,992.78 $ 7,824.00
Fund Balance Change: $ 7,824.00
Fund Balance at the Beginning of the FY: $ 468,392.72
Fund Balance at the End of the FY: $ 476,216.72




FY 2024 Budget
Ferndale Area District Library

FY 2024 FY 2024
YTD Budget
Capital Projects Fund - 401 October 2023 as of 10/31/2023
Revenue
401-271-699.101 - Coniributions from General Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
FY 2024 FY 2024
YTD Budget
Capital Projects Fund - 401 October 2023 as of 10/31/2023
Expenées
401-271-865.101 - Contributions to General Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
401-271-977- Capital Cutlay $0.00 $0.00 {$300,000.00)
Total Expenses $0.00 $0.00 ($300,000.00)
Capital Fund Balance Change: $0.00 $0.00 -$300,000.00
Capital Fund Balance at the Beginning of the FY: $557,206.00 $557,206.00
Capital Fund Balance at the End of the FY: $557,206.00 $257,206.00




Income Statement (Profit and Loss)

Ferndale Area District Library

For the month ended October 31, 2023

OCT 2023 OCT 2022 0CT 2021
Income
404.000 - Voted Property Taxes 26,846 64,291 -
40400i- Votel:l VPrrorprerrty Taxes - F;efsonal 7 41-,5’;'.;'4 39.,97.1 -
607.000- Fees for Services . 460 125
627.000 - Charge for Services 900 1,088 810
645.000 - Print Sales & Copies 1,389 175 17
660.000 - Fines &Forfeitures ’ o 146 530 162
673.000 - Sale of Property (pre-FYE2022) ) ’ . . 256
675.-0-01 - Individual Dorngtridlr'ls”& Honofariurﬁs 7 131 2,059 3
675002 - Contributions from Library Friends - o 7 1,000
693.000 - Sale of Property 03 ass -
695.000 - Miscellaneous Income e
Totallncome 70,889 110,120 2,470
Gross Profit 70,889 110,120 2,470
Qperating Expenses
706.001 - Salaries - Full-time 49,739 45,340 30,056
706.002 - Salaries - Part-time 13,490 15,398 13','1'35
706.003 - Salaries - Subs o 1,694 1,094 1,091
'Vn’rlg.ﬂoil - Sociarl Secuiity - Employee - 2-.567 4,-9“74 3,642
71;002 - égc}ai Secunty- Employer 2.567 - - 4,9-1;;. o 3“,642
716100 Health Insurance 7975 789 8Am
717.000 - Life Insuréncé EE 7 7 648 556 453
718,000 - Pension- ICMA-RC 401 6,115 4,311 3,531
720.001 - Medicare - Employee s00 1,163 2
720.002 - Medicare - Employer 500 1,163 852
721.001 - Federal Inccn%;-'_r;x -“Employeé” . 3,031 6,605 4,866
722.001 - Mi Income Tax-I Emﬁl;yéé o 1,475 3,095 2,056
722.002 - MI VUn'emponment - Employer .1,980 - -
723001 - VLoiciailiinc;mé fax - Employee o 49 "95 -
740,000 - Operating Supplies. 2,830 214 2,131
742.000 - Books - 7,120 7,7'52' 5','éi'9
'.|'4.13..-0-00 - Pe.riédicals 911 390 590
745.000 - Audio-Visual, Video 2,295 1,017 1,900
746.000 - Other Non Book 7}:‘30 78;'3725' 7,426
748.000 - Materials Proc-e-s;in.g-Su-pplies;- 1,119 49;1 546
775.0@0 - ﬁepéir& Maintenance- 3,322 8,385 2,909
802.b00 - Aurdit,’Actrurarial Fees - - 2,325
Income Statement {Profit and Loss) Ferndale Area District Library Dec 12,2023 Page 102




Income Statement {Profit and Loss)

0CT 2023 aCT 2022 OCT 2021
éOé:OOO - The Library Network- S “ -1-5);456 16,3840 o 157,12é
818.000- Contractual Services ' 17,578 6,650 6538
8556(50- Phone/Communica.tiuns . ) 538 539 436
873060 . 'i'raining,n'Education (pr.e-FYE2022)- L - 3,449
885006 - Sbecial Programs . ) ) . 1,420 . 1,200 1,128
900.000 - ;rinting & Publishing 361 s 5,443
914,000 - Liability Insurance (13200 . .
920,000 Utilities 2074 2,566 2,456
931,000 - Facilities Maintenance C 2511 2505 2,340
943.000 - Equipment Rental Alloc - General Fund Motor Pool Y ss4 569
956.000- Miscellaneous 32 T8 s
957.000- Training/Education 6,645 5554 .
558000 - Memberships & Dues 368 - o
9776006 - éuunty Delinquent Tax (:Hargeback 950 - .
977.000 - Capital Outlay 17,097 37,457 1,860
995.000 - Interest Expense o745 - .
Total Operating Expe;ses 7 7 ) 2_15,125 - 198,002 - 135,685

Operating Income {144,236) {87,882) {133,215)
Net Income (144,236) (87,882) {133,215)
Income Statement {Profit and Loss} Ferndale Area District Library Dec 12, 2023 Page2of2




Balance Sheet

Ferndale Area District Library

As of November 30, 2023
NOV 30,2023
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
557,206.0¢

Capital Projects Account
001.000 - General Account
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Equity

- 2,2214

1,664,211.88

2,221,417.88

88

2,221,417.88

Equity

320.000 - Retained Earnings

Current Year Earnings

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Balance Sheet Ferndale Area District Library

Dec 12,2023

| 2,221,417.88

2,221,417.88

Page 1of1



Income Statement (Profit and Loss)

Ferndale Area District Library
For the month ended November 30, 2023

NOV 2023 0CT 2023 SEP 2023 AUG 2023 JUL 2023 YEAR TO DATE
Income
404.000 - Voted Property Taxes 42 036 86 26,846.40 94,912.06 1,721,434.43 217,123.68 2,102,353.43
igisii-z[ Voted Property Taxes - 4137424 ) i ) 4137424
567.000 - Ltlo;;ry St;; Rl& 7 ) . R 5;793.23 - '9,?98.28
607.000 - Fees forSennces o ““2_2_5._(35 - - ) 2500 a 12500 25.00 400 0
620.000-ChargeforServices 34782 89959 20542 70898 602.08 2,952.99
§45.000-Print Sales & Copies 44340 138915 185 88955 707.60 3437.55
656,000 - Other Fees & Fines 25,740.81 - - - - 25 7;40-51
660.000 - Fines & Forfeitures 320.73 4550 825 11579 8909 71955
isr;g?alr}lj:ii"ld“al Donations & 1,351.80 130.98 163 5.00 101.52 1,594.93
ﬁl.i:gf - Contributions from Library X i ) 1,000.06 1,000.00
693.000 - Sale of Pr_operty S é0_526 o 105"?:4 - - . 90.00 42.98 1,041.58
695.000 - Miscellaneous Income - -- ) - S -- . 44(} - 4.40
Totallncome 71,271.78 70,889.29 9530021  1,733,171.03  219,696.45  2,190,418.76
Gross Profit 71,271.78 70,889.29 95,390.21 1,733,171.03 219,696.45 2,190,418.76
Operating Expenses
706.001 - Salaries - Full- tlme 76,830.80 49,738.96 50,011.62 47,358,92 35,874.40 259,815.70
7:66 OOZI-E-a-l_e.!rlesn_l;ert tlme - 18,794.51 13,490.13 13,017.79 7 10,98?57 o 9‘434?0 7 6?,73;56
7056.003 - Salarles Subs o R 1,87684 . -1,694.14 . 1,542.60 1,324.20 1,445.40 7,8837178
715.001 - Social Security - Employee 1043736 2,566.93 5,170.39 4,820.78 3,780.72 26,776.18
715,002 - Social Security - Employer 043707 256681 517037 482072 378062 2677519
716.100 - Health Insurance 7,974.74 7,97474 7,97474 o 7,97_'474 - 16,51_8:.’; o “.48 417.69
}I;DE}EJ Llfeln;o};l;e Wl;l-f 7 6;801 648.01 648.01 648.01 648.01 3_,54605
718.000 - Pension- ICMA-RC 401 7 1,48?13 6,1;14.95 7 4,065.66 4,002.74 3,948.54 19,619.02
720 001 Medicare - Employee i,:l4(l.9é 600.30 - 1209 25-" 1,127.42 884.20 6,262.15
720.002 - Medicare - Employer 2,440.98 60034 120921 112743 88419 626215
Eﬂlp?g;eel:e‘leral Income Tax - 12,561.84 3,03L.44 6,105.69 6,031.72 481606 3254675
T722.00% - Ml Income Tax Employee 6,009.85 1,475.15 2,961.41 2,783.42 2,160.81 15,390.64
722, 002 MI Unemployment Employ;er - 198000 - - - 1,580.06
723 001 Local Income Tax Employee 195.64 7 4891 9782 97.82 76.86 517.05
725 [}00 Workers Compensatlon - - . 9857.007 7 985.00
740.000 - Operating Supplies o .“.2,22-7.43 2,829.59 3,362.33 3,?64.7179” 72,6873.72; 14 78676776
742. 000 Books 8,5;.?_.;1-1- 7,119..5-'-5 7,514.58 6,158.97 1,181.68 30,522.59
?43 000 Perlodlcals 6,461.64- - 910_97 - 1_2600 390 03 . 7 888 64
745.000 - Audlo-Vlsual Vldeo 3,508.07 2;294.87 2,015.él) - l ,817. 44“ . . l,64448 - 11,280.16
Income Statement {Profit and Loss} Ferndale Area District Library Dec 12,2023 Pagelocfz




Income Statement {Profit and Loss)

NQV 2023 OCT 2023 SEP 2023 AUG 2023 JuLzo23 YEAR TO DATE

746.000-Other NonBook 631510 777995 1131766 12,879.30 2,620.92 40,912.93
748,000 - Materials Processing Supplies 54042 L1879 36769 473.00 22492 2,724.82
775000 - Repair & Maintenance 304600 33277 44385 97500 61095 8,307.57
:?:C);Bélb-The LibraryNetw;rk - o 17;;56287 - 79?57?736 79,56:162 ) 72,7311.44 32,305.14
818.000 - Contractual Services 701776 1157797 353597 681959 836632 43317561
85?:0_00 -Fhone/tommunications 5471.671” 7 VS;?;TV.ST ” 5§?5€‘ ”5;?:5? - 53737 7 2,691.65
885.000 - Special Programs 2,665.97 142013 209397 126830 455920 12,007.37
900.000 - Printing & Publishing 135.64 36120 580892 221178 - 851763
914.000 - Liability Insurance . (1,320.00) - . 1591300 14593.00
920000- Utilties 2,575.48 2,272.93 2,811.02 307091 288355 1361489
931.000 - Facilities Maintenance 296752 2,510.50 3,11050 541202 45500 1445554
21?1'2?; ;E?\jf{;ﬁ;‘:&?al Alloc- 594,36 624.36 910.60 609.36 £09.36 3,348.04
956,000 - Miscellaneous 33700 34200 87.00 73.25 59.50 89875
957.000 - Training/Fducation 396430 664536 106500 61691 6270 12,354.27
956.000 - Memberships & Dues 70.00 36776 Coes00 - 134767 1,870.43
Chargabaci I esas : S o
977.000 - Capital Outlay 43,358.00 17,996.50 5,100.00 9,420.32 1,100.00 76,974.82
996.000- Interest Expense - a0 . . - 2747500
;Tr:)iai 6};erating Expenses 24%,609.5.6“ - 515,12;45 - 150,45028 i59,168.95 132,409.52 904,163.76
Operating Income {175,737.78} (144,236.16} (55,060.07) 1,574,002.08 87,286.93 1,286,255.00
Net Income (175,737.78} (144,236.16) {55,060.07) 1,574,002.08 87,286.93 1,286,255.00
Income Statement [Profit and Loss) Ferndale Area District Library Dec 12,2023 Page 2of2




FY 2024 Budget
Ferndale Area District Library

FY 2024 FY 2024
YTD Budget

General Fund - 101 November 2023 as of 11/30/2023
Revenue
101-271-404.000 - Voled Property Taxes $ 42,036.86 $ 2,102,353.43 3 2,384,162.00
101-271-404.001 - Voted Property Taxes - Personal $ - $ 41,374.24 $ 38,500.00
101-271-567.000 - Library State Aid 3 - $ 9,798.28 3 19,323.00
101-271-581.000 - Grants $ - $ - $ -
101-271-607.000 - Fees for Services 3 225.00 3 400.00 $ 600.00
101-271-627.000 - Charge for Services $ 347.92 3 2,953.99 $ 9,000.00
101-271-645,000 - Print Sales & Copies $ 44340 $ 3,437.65 $ 1,500.00
101-271-656.000 - Cther Fees & Fines $ 25,740.81 3 25,740.81 $ 26,000.00
101-271-660.000 - Fines & Forfeitures $ 320.73 $ 719.55 3 1,000.00
101-271-675.001 - Individual Donations & Honorariums $ 1,351.80 $ 1,594.93 $ 2,500.00
101-271-675.002 - Contributions from Library Friends $ - $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00
101-271-675.003 - Special Event Proceeds $ - $ - $ -
101-271-675.004 - Library Board Fundraising $ - $ - $ 100.00
101-271-693.000 - Sale of Property 3 805.26 $ 1,041.58 $ 1,500.00
101-271-695.000 - Miscellaneous Income $ - $ 4.40 $ 5,500.00
101-271-699.401 - Contributions from Capital Fund $ - % - $ -
Total Revenue $ 71,271.78 $ 2,190,418.76 $ 2,490,685.00

FY 2024 FY 2024

YTD Budget

General Fund - 101 November 2023 as of 11/30/2023
Expenses
101-271-706.001 - Salaries - Full-time $ (76,830.80) $ (259,815.70) $ (694,550.00}
101-271-706.002 - Salaries - Part-time $ (18,794.51) $ (65,724.80) $ (177,908.00}
101-271-706.003 - Salaries - Subs $ (1,876.84) % (7,883.18) % (9,700.00}
101-271-715.001 - Social Security - Employee $ {10,437.36) $ {26,776.18) $ (68,301.00)
101-271-715.002 - Social Security - Employer $ (10,437.17) $ (26,775.79) $ (68,301.00})
101-271-716.100 - Health Insurance $ (7,974.74) $ {48,417.69) % (120,000.00}
101-271-717.000 - Life Insurance - EE $ (648.01) $ (3,240.05) $ (7,500.00)
101-271-718.000 - Pension- ICMA-RC 401 $ (1,487.13) $ {19,619.02) 3 (48,000.00}
101-271-720.001 - Medicare - Employee $ (2,440.98) b (6,262.15) $ (15,072.00})
101-271-720.002 - Medicare - Employer $ (2,440.98) $ (6,262.15) $ (15,072.00}
101-271-721.001 - Federal Income Tax - Employee $ (12,561.84) $ {32,546.75) $ (100,132.00}
101-271-722.001 - Ml Income Tax - Employee $ (6,009.85) $ {15,390.64) $ (43,380.00}
101-271-722.002 - MI Unemployment - Employer $ - $ {1,980.00) $ -
101-271-723.001 - Local Income Tax - Employee $ (195.64) $ {517.05) $ {1,200.00}
101-271-725.000 - Workers Compensation $ - $ (985.00) $ {2,000.00}
101-271-730.000 - Postage, Mail Processing $ - $ - $ {8,000.00}
101-271-740.000 - Operating Supplies $ (2,227 .43) $ (14,866.76) $ (36,000.00}
101-271-742.000 - Books $ (8,547 .41) $ (30,522.59) $ (95,600.00)
101-271-743.000 - Periodicals 3 (6,461.64) 3 {7,888.64) 3 (10,000.00)
101-271-745.000 - Audio-Visual, Video $ (3,508.07) $ (11,280.16) $ (33,495.00)
101-271-746.000 - Other Non Book $ (6,315.10) $ (40,912.93) $ (95,100.00)
101-271-748.000 - Materials Processing Supplies $ (540.42) $ {2,724.82) $ {8,400.00)




FY 2024 FY 2024
YTD Budget

General Fund - 101 November 2023 as of 11/30/2023
101-271-775.000 - Repair & Maintenance 3 {3,046.00) $ {8,397.57) $ (32,000.00)
101-271-802.000 - Audit/Actuarial Fees $ - $ - § (5,100.00)
101-271-803.000 - The Library Network $ - § (32,305.14) $ (55,000.00)
101-271-818.000 - Contractual Services $ (7,017.76) $ (43,317.61) $ (80,000.00)
101-271-853.000 - Phone/Communications $ (541.61) $ (2,691.65) $ (7,000.00)
101-271-885.000 - Special Programs $ {2,665.97) $ (12,007.37) $ {35,000.00)
101-271-900.000 - Printing & Publishing $ (135.64) $ (8,517.63) $ (24,000.00)
101-271-914.000 - Liability Insurance 3 - $ (14,593.00} $ {15,000.00)
101-271-920.000 - Utilities $ {2,575.48) $ (13,614.89) $ (44,000.00)
101-271-931.000 - Facilities Maintenance 3 (2,967.52) 3 (14,455.54} $ (40,000.00)
101-271-843.000 - Equipment Rental $ {594.36) $ {3.348.04}) $ (7,600.00)
101-271-856.000 - Miscellanecus b {337.00) $ (898.75) $ (1,500.00)
101-271-857.000 - Training/Educalion $ {3,964.30) $ (12,354.27}) $ (22,000.00)
101-271-958.000 - Memberships & Dues $ (70.00) $ (1,870.43) $ (7,000.00)
101-271-860.000 - County Delinquent Tax Chargeback 3 - $ {950.00} $ -
101-271-865.401 - Contributions to Capital Fund $ - $ - $ -
101-271-977.000 - Capital Outiay $ (43,358.00) 3 (76,974.82} $ (50,000.00)
101-271-992.000 - Debt Sve- Principal $ - $ - $ {345,000.00)
101-271-894.000 - Interest Expense 3 - $ (27,475.00} $ (54,950.00)
Total Expenses $ {247,009.56) $ {904,163.76) $ (2,482,861.00)
NetIncome / (Loss): $ (175,737.78) $ 1,286,255.00 $ 7,824.00
Fund Balance Change: $ 7,824.00
Fund Balance at the Beginning of the FY: $ 468,392.72
Fund Balance at the End of the FY: $ 476,216.72

i




FY 2024 Budget
Ferndale Area District Library

FY 2024 FY 2024
YTD Budget
Capital Projects Fund - 401 Novembher 2023 as of 11/30/2023
Revenue
401-271-699.101 - Contributions from General Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
FY 2024 FY 2024
YTD Budget
Capital Projects Fund - 401 November 2023 as of 11/30/2023
Expenses
401-271-865.101 - Contributions to General Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
401-271-977- Capital Outlay $0.00 $0.00 {$300,000.00)
Total Expenses $0.00 $0.00 ($300,000.00)
Capitat Fund Balance Change: $0.00 $0.00 -$300,000.00
Capital Fund Balance at the Beginning of the FY: $557,206.00 $557,206.00
Capital Fund Balance at the End of the FY: $557,206.00 $257,206.00




Income Statement (Profit and Loss)

Ferndale Area District Library
For the month ended November 30, 2023

NOV 2023 NOV 2022 NOV 2021
Income
404.000 - Voted Property Taxes 42,037 60,365 114,701
470471.7061 :Voted Fr”opr};arty faxes - Personal - - S . _39,133
607.000-FeesforServices - 225 L
627.000-Charge for Services ' 348 1,075 a3
6745.000 - Prirf;ti;srérlés &Eobié; B - o N 443 155 ) 149
GSG.DOO-OtI;eVr Feieisi&r Flne; S - o 7 25,141 - . -
660.000-Fines&FrorfeiturVE.;; S . 7 7 a2 a8 75
673.000 - Sale of Property (pre-FYE2022) N o - 7 7 - 104
675001 Individual Donations & Honorariums 7 1.352 7 4 46
675.004 - Library Board Fundraising S 95 -
693.000- Sale of Property ' 805 7 -
695000 Miscellaneous Income . - (W)
Total Income R 7i,i?2 61,854 154,642
Gross Profit 71,272 61,854 154,642
Operating Expenses
T06.001 - Salaries - Full-time 76,831 68,010 50,144
TDG.GOZ;Sa'laries-Part-time - - R 18.795 . - 20,395 20,653
706.003 - Safaries - Subs e 18 1,263
715.001 - Social Security - Employee ' 10,437 7,207 R TY
715,002 - Soéiél Securify - Employerr - - o o 10,437 7,297 . -3,-7’-97
716.160 - Health Insurance - 7 7 o 7,975 7,829 8,667
717.000- Life Insurance - EE e 740 453
718.000- Pension- ICMARC401 1,487 4,096 5,550
720.001-Medicare - Employee - ' 2,441 1,707 888
720.002 - Medicare - Employer . h - . 2-,441 1,707 888
7210(}1 Federai Inéome Tax-Employee . . . o 12_562 9,638 4,994
722001 -};t‘lililr'\éorﬁeTax-Eril;-lbloyee “ - 6010 - 4548 2,18%
?23.051 - deérlrln'ciome fax - l:imrplroyee” 7 - 198 . -14-3 B
740.000 - Cperating Supplies 7 7 7 2,227 2,924 5,780
-74-2..00.0-- Books . o 8,547 8,297 7,661
":'-4.3.-006---Per-iod-ica.ls . . . o 6,462 5,595 6,024
745000 Audio-Visual, Video ' 3,508 3,783 2,238
746.000 - Other Non Book . . o . 6,315 4,461 6,795
748.000 - Mater{éls Processing Supplies - - -540 62 1,000
775,000 V-Vhépéit; &Maintenance - - 3,0-4-5' ) 2,497" 2,319
802.000 - Aﬁdit,’Actuarial Fees - 2,750 . .

Income Statement {Profit and Loss) Ferndale Area District Library Dec 12,2023

Pageloll




Income Statement [Profit and Loss)

NOV 2023 NOV 2022 NOV 2021

818.000 - Contractual Services 7,018 3,885 3,963
853.000 - Phone/Communications 542 537 434
873.000 - Training/Education (pre-FYE2022) - - 336
885,000 - Special Programs 2,666 2,797 1,221
900.000 - Printing & Publishing 136 70 81
920,000 - Utilities 2,575 2,496 2,487
931.000 - Facilities Maintenance 2,963 2,505 2,430
943.000 - Equipment Rental Alloc.- General Fund Motor Pool 594 569 584
956.000 - Miscellaneous 337 337 495
957.000 - Training/Education 3,964 1,368 -
958.000 - Memberships & Dues 70 57 -
977.000 - Capital Qutlay 43358 16,618 97,716
Total Operating Expenses 247,010 198,194 242,848
Operating Income (175,738} {136,339) {88,206)
Net Income (175,738} {136,339) {88,206)
Income Statement (Profit and Loss) Ferndale Area District Library Dec 12,2023 Page 2 0f 2



(| 12/15/2023

i
. FADL Board of Directors

Request for Board Action

From: lenny Marr

Subject: Board Calendar of Events 2023 — Updated December 2023

Summary:

Here are some recurring annual events and deadlines for the Board calendar in 2023:

January:
*Mid-Year Budget Amendments (Completed)
*Board Offices and Committee Chairs (Completed)

February:

*Due: Feb. 1%, Annual State Library Survey (Completed)
*Send out RFP for Audit Services (In progress)

*FY 2024 budget process begins (Completed)

March:
*Strategic Planning — Quarterly Review (Completed)
*FY 2024 budget process continues — board input (Completed)

April:
*FY 2024 draft budget presented to board (in May) (Completed)
*Library Director Personnel Review — Director submits self-evaluation (Completed)

May:

*Library Director Personnel Review — Library Board completes Director evaluation forms
(Completed)

*FY 2024 Budget Hearing (Completed)

*Director’s Annual Evaluation — Closed Session (Completed)

June:

*Due: L-4029 signed millage tax rate form to Oakland County & City of Ferndale (Completed)
*Final budget amendments for FY 2023 (Completed)

*Approve renewal of Library General Property & Liability Insurance policy for FY 2024
(Completed)

*Approve FY 2024 Health Insurance Plan (Completed)

*Strategic Planning — Quarterly Review (skip)

July:
*Begin new FY 2024 (Complete)



August:
*Library Board meeting August 10, 2022 due to Dream Cruise (Complete)

September:

October:
*Conduct the annual library financial audit (prep work in progress}
*MLA Annual Conference (Kalamazoo) October 17-20 (12 staff attended)

November:
*Library audit scheduled for week of November 27 (Complete)

December:

*Presentation of library audit (move to January}

*Due: Audit must be filed with the State of Michigan by December 31 (pending)

*Due: Annual continuing disclosure paperwork for the library bond must be filed by December
31 (Pending)

Recommended Action:
No action needed, informational only. Additional events will be added throughout the year.




Ferndale Sg

EA DISTRICT LIBRARY .

2024 Regular Library Board of Directors Meetings

Meetings are on the 37 Thursday of the month unless noted by an *

January 18

February 15

March 21

April 18

May 16

June 20

July 18

August 8 * (Dream Cruise is 8/17)
September 19

October 10* (MLA Conference Oct 16-18)
November 21

December 12* (Changed due to holidays)



Ferndale

REA DISTRICT LIBRARY .

Schools Committee Report

School Outreach Report from Everett Pine, Head of Youth Services
« Battle of the Books 2024 update
o Battle kick-off is Wednesday, December 13
o The Battle website will be live after 12/13: fadl.org/battle

¢ Drayton Co-Op Preschool book outreach (weekly) - the whole youth department is
involved in this outreach from selecting books to delivering books to the school.

e Story Trail update: We now have a large format printer and laminator to make our Story
Trail signs in-house. Youth staff were trained on 12/6. Our spring book will be the
inaugural book we make signs for on the new equipment.

o FLEL update: Everett will be partnering with the FLEL librarian to run an afterschool
STEAM program. First program is January 30 for 2nd graders.

e FMS update: Mary Grahame is working with to FMS staff members to start an
afterschool Rainbow Club starting in January.

e FECC Preschool Storytime - Damon is leading these storytimes. Next one is December
13.

e With the addition of the FLEL and FMS outreach programs we now have a presence at
all of the Ferndale schools.

e Social Justice & Snacks - Julia is running this program. Next one is December 12.

o Morris & Martha D.1.A. field trip took place 12/8/23. After this one Erin, Julia, Jeff, and
Phoenix (and Morris & Martha) will be taking a break.



